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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.    Yes  ¨    No  x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the
past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of
registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form
10-K  x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of �accelerated filer and large
accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer  ¨ Accelerated filer  x Non-accelerated filer  ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).     Yes  ¨    No  x

The aggregate market value of the registrant�s common stock as of September 30, 2006, held by non-affiliates of the registrant (without admitting that any person
whose shares are not included in such calculation is an affiliate) computed by reference to the price at which the common stock was last sold as of such date was
$354,996,105.

As of June 8, 2007, 32,439,174 shares of the registrant�s common stock, $.01 par value, were outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement for Abiomed, Inc.�s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is scheduled to be filed within 120 days after the end
of Abiomed, Inc.�s fiscal year, are incorporated by reference into Part III (Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14) of this Form 10-K.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, encourages companies to disclose forward-looking information so that investors can better understand a
company�s future prospects and make informed investment decisions. This report, including the documents incorporated by reference in this report, includes
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We have based these forward-looking statements on our
current expectations and projections about future events. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in, or implied by, these forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements are identified by words such as �believe,� �anticipate,� �expect,� �intend,� �plan,� �will,� �may� and other similar expressions. In
addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections or other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements in these documents include, but are not necessarily limited to, those relating to:

� our ability to obtain and maintain regulatory approval both in the U.S. and abroad for our existing products, including U.S. approval for our Impella
products as well as for new products in development;

� the ability of patients using our products to obtain reimbursement of their medical expenses by government healthcare programs and private insurers
including potential changes to current government and private insurers� reimbursements;

� the other competing therapies that may in the future be available to heart failure patients;

� our plans to develop and market new products and improve existing products;

� the potential markets that exist or could develop for our products and products under development;

� our business strategy;

� our revenue growth expectations and our goal of achieving profitability; and

� the sufficiency of our liquidity and capital resources.
Factors that could cause actual results or conditions to differ from those anticipated by these and other forward-looking statements include those more fully
described in the �Risk Factors� section set forth in Part I, Item1A and elsewhere in this report. In light of these assumptions, risks and uncertainties, the results and
events discussed in the forward-looking statements contained in this report or in any document incorporated by reference might not occur. You are cautioned not
to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this report or the date of the document incorporated by reference.
We do not undertake any obligation to update or alter any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. All
subsequent forward-looking statements attributable to us or to any person acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements
contained or referred to in this section.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading provider of medical devices in circulatory support and offer a continuum of care in heart recovery to acute heart failure patients. Our strategy is
focused on establishing heart recovery as the goal for all acute cardiac attacks. Our products are designed to enable the heart to rest, heal and recover by improving
blood flow and/or performing the pumping function of the heart. We believe we are the only company with commercially available cardiac assist devices approved
for heart recovery by the Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, and our products have been used to treat thousands of patients to date. Our products can be used
in a broad range of clinical settings, including by heart surgeons for patients in profound shock and by interventional cardiologists for patients who are in
pre-shock or in need of prophylactic support in the cardiac catheterization lab, or cath lab. We are focused on increasing awareness of heart recovery and
establishing it as the goal for patients with failing but potentially recoverable hearts. We expect that recovery awareness and utilization of our products will
significantly increase the number of patients able to return home from the hospital with their own hearts. Since 2004, our new executive team has focused our
efforts on expanding our product portfolio, and we have eight disposable products that have either been approved or cleared by the FDA in the U.S. or have
received CE mark approval in Europe as well as several additional products in development.

Industry Background

Heart Disease�Overview

According to the American Heart Association, or AHA, coronary heart disease is the leading cause of death in the U.S. Coronary heart disease is a condition of the
coronary arteries that causes reduced blood flow and insufficient oxygen delivery to the affected portion of the heart. Coronary heart disease leads to acute
myocardial infarction, or AMI, commonly known as a heart attack, and with multiple heart attacks over time, this leads to congestive heart failure, a condition in
which the heart is unable to pump enough blood to the body�s other organs. The AHA estimates that in the United States in 2004 there were approximately two
million hospital visits with coronary heart disease as the first-listed diagnosis and approximately 1.1 million hospital visits with congestive heart failure as the
first-listed diagnosis. The number of hospital visits with acute myocardial infarction, or heart attack, as the first- or second-listed diagnosis was approximately
896,000.

A broad spectrum of therapies exists for the treatment of patients in early stages of coronary heart disease. Patients who have rhythm management problems can be
treated with anti-arrhythmic drugs, pacemakers or implantable defibrillators. Additionally, angioplasty procedures and stents are commonly used in the cath lab for
early-stage circulatory complications to increase blood flow to and from the heart. These treatments are often successful in slowing the progression of heart
disease, extending life, and/or improving the quality of life for some period of time. Acute patients have potentially recoverable hearts. Treatment for acute
patients in pre-shock in the cath lab is primarily focused on hemodynamic stabilization and clinical procedures aimed at improving reduced cardiac output. Acute
patients in profound shock typically require treatment in the surgery suite including patients suffering from cardiogenic shock after a heart attack, post-cardiotomy
cardiogenic shock or myocarditis. Chronic patients have hearts that are not recoverable due to left and right side heart failure or after chronic conditions that cause
a heart to fail over time. Limited therapies exist today for patients with severe, end-stage, or chronic heart failure.

In more severe cases of heart failure, patients are sent directly to the surgery suite for coronary bypass or valve replacement surgery. The most severe acute heart
failure patients are patients in profound cardiogenic shock, including those suffering from myocarditis, a viral attack of the heart, or those suffering from impaired
ability of the heart to pump blood, after a heart attack or heart surgery. According to results of the SHOCK (Should We Emergently Revascularize Occluded
Coronaries for Cardiogenic Shock) trial published in the August 26, 1999 edition of The New England Journal of Medicine, approximately 7 to 10% of the
patients who are hospitalized for a heart attack suffer from cardiogenic shock and 60 to 80% of those patients die. These patients typically require treatments in the
surgery suite involving the use of mechanical circulatory support devices that provide increased blood flow and reduce the strain on the heart. However, many less
severe patients in the cath lab could also benefit from circulatory support devices or other clinical treatment, which could potentially prevent them from entering
into profound shock.

The Market for Mechanical Circulatory Support Devices in the U.S.

There are two primary types of devices used in the cath lab and surgery suite for circulatory support for pre-shock and profound shock patients: intra-aortic
balloons, or IABs, and ventricular assist devices, or VADs.

An IAB is an inflatable balloon inserted by a catheter that is used as an initial line of therapy in the cath lab or the surgery suite for patients with diminished heart
function. However, IABs typically provide only limited support and depend on the patient�s own heart to
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generate the majority of the patient�s blood flow. In addition, IABs are often used in conjunction with inotropes or other drugs that enhance heart muscle ejection
but increase the risk of mortality. IABs have limited effectiveness in patients that are arrhythmic and /or in cardiogenic shock.

Ventricular assist devices are mechanical devices that help the failing heart pump blood or take over the pumping function of the failing heart. Historically, VADs
have been highly invasive and require implantation in the surgery suite. The use of VADs generally falls into three sub-categories: destination therapy,
bridge-to-transplant and recovery. Destination therapy generally involves the implantation of a mechanical support device as the last clinical alternative for a
chronic patient with end-stage heart failure who is not eligible for transplantation. Destination VAD therapy only prolongs the end-stage disease, as the patient�s
heart condition is terminal and the patient�s heart is not expected to recover. Furthermore, artificial replacement hearts, another destination therapy modality, may
be suitable for end-stage heart failure patients requiring full support.

Bridge-to-transplant VADs are primarily used to support chronic patients eligible to receive a heart transplant. According to the United Network for Organ
Sharing, in 2006 there were only approximately 1,850 heart transplants in the U.S. As a result, about one third of the patients eligible for transplant must rely on
bridge-to-transplant devices for an extended period while waiting for a heart transplant. During this time, these patients frequently experience significant medical
complications, such as infection. Moreover, these devices generally require the removal of a portion of the patient�s heart tissue, significantly limiting the chance of
recovery of the patient�s heart.

Recovery VADs are designed to enable the patient�s heart to recover so that the patient can return home with his or her own heart. Because recovery is the goal,
these devices are designed to minimize damage to heart tissue and be removed once the heart has recovered. If possible, recovery of one�s own heart is generally
preferred to transplantation or prolonged device implantation, both of which have significant side effects and increase the risk of mortality. Historically, however,
recovery devices have not been widely available.

Our Solution

Our product portfolio is designed to provide heart recovery as an option across the continuum of care for acute heart failure patients. We believe our AB5000 and
BVS 5000 products are the only commercially available cardiac assist devices approved by the FDA. In addition, if approved by the FDA, our Impella products
and our iPulse console, together with our recently FDA-cleared IAB, will expand our heart recovery devices beyond the surgery suite by providing circulatory
support for pre-shock heart failure patients in the cath lab. This expansion into the cath lab will significantly increase our target market opportunity and will enable
us to offer products to interventional cardiologists in the approximately 1,750 U.S. hospitals with cath labs. We estimate that there are approximately 14,000
interventional cardiologists in the U.S. The new target patient population in the cath lab for our Impella and IAB devices includes approximately one million U.S.
patients annually who enter the hospital for heart attacks and high-risk angioplasty procedures. This target patient base is in addition to our existing target U.S.
patient population of approximately 75,000 patients suffering from cardiogenic shock after a heart attack or heart surgery, or suffering from myocarditis. Our
existing target patients are those treated in the approximately 1,000 open heart centers and transplant centers in the U.S., which continue to represent a significant
opportunity for growth as well.

We developed our first heart recovery products for use in open heart centers and transplant centers. Our AB5000 and BVS 5000 are capable of assuming the
pumping function of the heart. Unlike destination therapy and bridge-to-transplant devices, which are designed for heart patients with irreversible heart damage,
our AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems are designed for heart recovery, requiring only a minimal incision in the left ventricle of the heart. We believe the AB5000�s
high flow rates, ease of implant, and historically low incidence of adverse events facilitate heart recovery, potentially avoiding the need for heart transplantation
and improving patient outcomes. Also, the AB5000 console�s relatively small size, light weight and affixed wheels enable patient mobility in the hospital which
can also contribute to improved patient care and clinical outcomes. In October 2005, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, or CMS, increased
reimbursement for our AB5000 and BVS 5000 products for patients that recover using our devices to levels similar to those for patients who undergo heart
transplants. Since its introduction approximately fifteen years ago, the BVS 5000 has supported thousands of patients in hundreds of medical centers around the
world. The AB5000, our next-generation heart recovery device introduced in 2004, provides up to six liters of pulsatile flow, can provide support for days to
months, provides patient mobility, and has already supported more than 500 patients globally.

In May 2005, we completed the acquisition of Impella CardioSystems AG, located in Aachen, Germany. Impella expands our product portfolio to include devices
that address the larger population of heart attack and high-risk angioplasty patients treated by interventional cardiologists in the cath lab. This population includes
patients whose hearts can potentially recover with assistance but without open heart surgery. Our Impella 2.5 and 5.0 catheters are micro heart pumps that can be
utilized in the cath lab by cardiologists and quickly inserted percutaneously through the femoral artery over a guide wire to reach the left ventricle of the heart.
This rapid procedure time facilitates early patient stabilization, giving an interventional cardiologist additional time to evaluate the most effective and clinically
prudent treatment option for the patient. These devices allow the heart to rest, heal and potentially recover without the use of inotropes, drugs commonly used with
IABs that increase the risk of mortality. In addition, the higher blood flow rate of our Impella 5.0 enables clinical use by surgeons as well to treat more severe
heart conditions in the surgery suite. We believe our Impella products can provide solutions to patients with less severe heart disease, enhancing patient outcomes
and increasing the number of patients who return home with their own hearts.
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We expect that our iPulse console, if approved by the FDA, will further expand our product reach into the cath lab. We have submitted a PMA supplement to the
FDA for our iPulse console and expect approval in the summer of calendar 2007; however, we cannot guarantee approval. The iPulse console is designed to
support our IAB as well as other manufacturers� IABs, which are used in the cath lab and surgery suite. Because our multi-functional console also supports our
AB5000 and BVS 5000 blood pumps, we believe the iPulse will provide our customers additional flexibility in allocating console resources between the surgery
suite and the cath lab. In addition, because a significant portion of IABs are used in the surgery suite, we believe adoption of our iPulse console will increase
utilization of our AB5000 ventricle.

In September 2006, we received Humanitarian Device Exemption, or HDE, approval from the FDA for our AbioCor Implantable Replacement Heart, the first
completely self-contained artificial heart. The AbioCor gives chronic patients with biventricular heart failure who are not eligible for a transplant and whose sole
alternative is death the opportunity to extend life. The AbioCor has no wires piercing the skin and allows the patient improved quality of life outside the hospital.
We expect to begin a controlled roll-out of the AbioCor in late calendar 2007 at approximately five heart centers in the U.S. We are also developing our
next-generation artificial heart, the AbioCor II, which is approximately 30% smaller than the existing AbioCor and is being designed with a goal of five-year
reliability.

Our Strategy

Our strategic objective is to establish heart recovery as the goal for all acute cardiac attacks. To achieve this objective, we intend to:

� Expand our global distribution by hiring additional direct sales and clinical personnel and growing our network of international distributors. With
the growth in our product portfolio and recent regulatory approvals for certain products, we now have greater opportunities to market and sell our
products to both heart surgeons and interventional cardiologists in the United States and abroad. To address this larger market, we plan to continue to
expand our global sales and clinical headcount. In particular, we intend to hire sales representatives with extensive clinical experience, particularly in
the cath lab, to enhance our ability to market and sell our products to interventional cardiologists. To address international markets, we intend to
augment our direct sales force in Germany and France and expand our network of international distributors to include additional territories.

� Establish recovery awareness through clinical data and published scientific studies. Many heart surgeons and cardiologists are unfamiliar with the
clinical results that have been achieved with our heart recovery devices and accordingly do not consider heart recovery as a viable medical
alternative. We are using evidence-based medicine to promote heart recovery as the goal for patients with failing but potentially recoverable hearts.
We also plan to demonstrate that our Impella products are an alternative to the use of IABs and inotropes as the initial treatment for less severe heart
failure patients. We intend to continue to support the publication of papers that illustrate the benefits of heart recovery, provide webcasts and
seminars on the cost savings associated with recovery, promote heart recovery at industry trade shows, and hold training sessions for clinicians to
begin using our heart recovery products. We will also continue to educate hospitals on the reimbursement options available for our products.

� Continue to enhance our product portfolio to address patients along the entire continuum of care for heart recovery, from the cath lab, to the surgery
suite, to the intensive care unit, to home discharge. Our earliest circulatory assist product, the BVS 5000 system, and our next-generation AB5000
system address heart failure patients requiring surgical intervention to improve their heart function and are sold primarily to open heart centers and
transplant centers. We now have Impella 2.5 and 5.0 catheters and recently launched our IAB and iPulse console. These products target the larger
population of acute heart failure patients in the cath lab, whose hearts might recover with assistance but without open heart surgery. Our Impella 2.5
and 5.0 products and iPulse platform are CE marked and we are in the process of pursuing FDA approval in the U.S. for our Impella 2.5 and 5.0
catheters, as well as our iPulse console. We intend to continue to develop and introduce additional new products to cover a broader population of
potential heart recovery patients, and we also plan to seek regulatory approval for the use of our products for a broader range of patient indications.
We have a number of new products at various stages of development. For example, in January 2007 we announced that we are conducting pre-clinical
studies for our Impella Pediatric product that is a catheter-based heart pump to provide left-ventricular support to pediatric patients.

� Evaluate strategic opportunities to add complementary products and technologies. We constantly evaluate strategic opportunities to add
complementary products and technologies, and we may pursue selective additions that would provide products or intellectual property that enhance
our product portfolio to address patients across the continuum of care in heart recovery. For example, as a result of our acquisition of Impella
CardioSystems AG in May 2005, we added the Impella line of products, which expanded our target market for heart recovery devices beyond the
surgery suite and into the cath lab.
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Our Products

We are building a portfolio of cardiac assist solutions for cardiologists and surgeons. Our cardiac assist products provide circulatory support to acute heart failure
patients across the continuum of care in heart recovery.

Product Name Description of Use Regulatory Status
US CE Mark

Disposable Products for the Surgery Suite

BVS 5000 Blood Pump Provides temporary LVAD, RVAD or BiVAD support until recovery for cardiogenic shock from
heart attack; post-cardiotomy cardiogenic shock; myocarditis, failed transplant and certain other
clinical instances where the physician believes heart recovery is possible

ü ü

AB5000 Ventricle Provides temporary LVAD, RVAD or BiVAD support until recovery for cardiogenic shock from
heart attack: post-cardiotomy cardiogenic shock; myocarditis, failed transplant and certain other
clinical instances where the physician believes heart recovery is possible; allows for full patient
mobility

ü ü

Integrated Cannula
System

Connects the BVS 5000 and AB5000 ventricle to the body and provides an option for the
removal of the devices without re-opening the chest

ü Not yet
submitted

Impella RD (implantable) Provides temporary RVAD support until recovery for any temporary right heart failure due to
implantation of an LVAD, post-cardiotomy and heart attack patients after coronary bypass
surgery, angioplasty, or after transplantation

Not yet submitted ü

Impella LD Provides temporary LVAD support until recovery from cardiogenic shock due to heart attack:
post-cardiotomy cardiogenic shock, myocarditis, failed transplant and certain other clinical
instances where the physician believes heart recovery is possible

IDE approved
and pilot clinical
trial in progress

ü

Disposable Products for the Cardiac Catheterization Lab and the Surgery Suite

Impella 2.5 Miniature percutaneous heart pump providing up to 2.5 liters of blood flow per minute intended
to support the heart while undergoing high-risk angioplasty procedures or for assisting the heart
while in pre-shock for hemodynamic stabilization

IDE approved and
pilot clinical trial

in progress; patient
enrollment

completed; and
seeking

510(k) clearance

ü

Impella 5.0 Percutaneous heart pump providing up to 5.0 liters of blood flow per minute for low cardiac
output post-surgery patients intended to assist the heart while in pre-shock or profound shock for
recovery

IDE approved
and pilot clinical
trial in progress

ü

IAB Percutaneous intra-aortic balloon used to support a wide variety of prophylactic, pre-shock and
profound shock conditions

ü ü

Consoles

AB5000 Console Driver console for both BVS 5000 Blood Pump and AB5000 Ventricle ü ü

Mobile Pump Console Driver console for Impella products IDE approved and
pilot clinical trial

in progress; patient
enrollment

completed; and
seeking

510(k) clearance

ü

iPulse Console Multi-purpose driver console for IAB, AB5000, BVS 5000 and other manufacturers� balloons PMA supplement
under review

ü

Disposable Implants

AbioCor Fully implantable replacement heart for severe biventricular heart failure when chronic patients
are ineligible for a heart transplant

Approved under
HDE

Not yet
submitted
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AB5000 and BVS 5000

We manufacture and sell the AB5000 Circulatory Support System and the BVS 5000 Biventricular Support System for the temporary support of acute heart
patients in profound shock, including patients suffering from cardiogenic shock after a heart attack, post-cardiotomy cardiogenic shock, or myocarditis. The
AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems, which are implanted in the surgery suite, can assume the full pumping function of a patient�s failing heart, allowing the heart to
rest, heal and potentially recover. Both systems are designed to provide either univentricular or biventricular support. We believe the AB5000 and BVS 5000
systems are the only commercially available cardiac assist devices that are approved by the FDA for heart recovery for patients who have undergone successful
cardiac surgery and subsequently develop low cardiac output, or patients who suffer from acute cardiac disorders leading to hemodynamic instability.

The BVS 5000 Biventricular Support System was our first product and has been available for sale since 1992. It was the first FDA-approved heart assist device
capable of assuming the pumping function of the heart. Since its introduction in 1992, the BVS 5000 has supported thousands of patients in the U.S., Europe and
other countries.

The AB5000 Circulatory Support System, our next-generation product for heart recovery, is designed to provide a longer duration of support than the BVS 5000
and facilitates patient mobility in the hospital. The AB5000 can provide up to 6.0 liters of pulsatile blood flow per minute to support patients in profound shock.
The AB5000 was approved by the FDA in 2003 and has supported more than 600 patients globally. Our AB5000 is designed to provide enhanced patient mobility
within and between medical centers and to provide enhanced features and ease of use for caregivers. We believe the AB5000�s high flow rates, ease of implant and
historically low incidence of adverse events facilitate heart recovery, potentially avoiding the need for heart transplantation and improving patient outcomes. We
expect to rely increasingly on sales of the AB5000 system, as sales of the BVS 5000 decline.

Each of the AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems consists of a blood pump, or ventricle, one atrial or ventricular cannula, one arterial cannula and a driver console to
operate the pump. Other than the console, each component is a disposable item. The AB5000 console supports biventricular BVS 5000 blood pumps, AB5000
ventricles or a combination of the two. Both the AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems use the same cannulae and console, allowing for seamless transition of devices
without requiring an additional surgical procedure.

Impella 2.5, Impella 5.0, Impella RD and Impella LD

Our Impella 2.5 and 5.0 catheters are percutaneous micro heart pumps with integrated motors and sensors for use in interventional cardiology and heart surgery.
These devices are designed for use by interventional cardiologists to support pre-shock patients in the cath lab who may not require as much support as patients in
the surgery suite. Our Impella catheters are also designed to provide ventricular support for patients requiring hemodynamic stabilization or suffering from
reduced cardiac output, and can aid in recovering the hearts of patients following a heart attack. These products increase flow to the heart and organs without the
need for drugs such as inotropes while reducing the workload of the heart. Our Impella devices have already been used to treat more than 1,000 patients in Europe
and other countries outside the U.S. and have been the subject of over 20 peer-reviewed publications and other clinical presentations and publications.

These catheters can be quickly inserted through the femoral artery over a guide wire to reach the left ventricle of the heart where they are directly deployed to draw
blood out of the ventricle and deliver it to the circulation, thereby reducing ventricular work (resting the heart) and providing flow to the rest of the organs. The
Impella 2.5 is implanted percutaneously, while the Impella 5.0 is implanted via a small cut-down of the femoral artery in the groin. The Impella 2.5 can pump up
to 2.5 liters of blood per minute, and the Impella 5.0 can pump up to 5.0 liters of blood per minute. The Impella 5.0 has been used to treat patients in need of
cardiac support resulting from post-cardiotomy cardiogenic shock, myocarditis, low cardiac output after a heart attack, or post-coronary intervention procedures,
or as a bridge to other circulatory support devices, including our AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems. Our Impella RD is a right heart support pump, and our Impella
LD is a left heart pump. Both are surgically implanted.

Our Impella 2.5 and 5.0 catheters and Impella RD and LD heart pumps are already available in Europe under CE mark approval. We are pursuing FDA approval
for our Impella 2.5 and 5.0 products. The Impella 2.5 pilot clinical trial was designed to study the use of the Impella 2.5 to support high-risk angioplasty as a left
ventricular assist device. The Impella 2.5 patient enrollment has been completed through enrollment of 20 patients at the following hospitals: Brigham & Women�s
Hospital, Massachusetts General Hospital, Columbia Presbyterian, Scripps Clinic, Cedars-Sinai Medical Center, Texas Heart Institute, William Beaumont
Hospital and Academic Medical Centre of the University of Amsterdam. The trial will be completed after we have concluded all necessary post-enrollment patient
monitoring. Angioplasty, performed in the cath lab, is the insertion of a catheter-guided balloon and is used to open a narrowed coronary artery. A stent, or a
wire-mesh tube that expands to hold the artery open, is usually placed at the narrowed section. According to the American Heart Association, there are
approximately 1.3 million in-patient angioplasty procedures in the U.S. annually, of which only a fraction are high-risk. For purposes of our clinical trials,
high-risk angioplasty is generally defined as a procedure on patients undergoing angioplasty on an unprotected left main coronary artery lesion, or the last patent
coronary conduit, and who have poor cardiac function. The Impella 5.0 pilot clinical trial includes post-cardiotomy patients who have been weaned from the
heart-lung machine. In addition, we are seeking 510(k) clearance of our Impella 2.5
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catheter for short duration use. Regardless of the outcome of our 510(k) submission, we plan to pursue PMA approval for other clinical indications. We cannot
assure you that we will receive PMA approval or 510(k) clearance for either of our Impella 2.5 or 5.0 or that we will be able to sell them at anticipated prices.

IAB and iPulse

We recently introduced our percutaneous intra-aortic balloon, or IAB. An IAB is typically used in the cath lab as an initial line of therapy for patients with
diminished heart function, although a substantial number of IABs are used in the surgery suite. Our IAB is easy to insert and is designed to enhance blood flow to
the heart and other organs for patients with diminished heart function. Our IAB is inserted percutaneously into a patient�s descending aorta and inflates and deflates
in counterpulsation to the patient�s heart rhythm. The IAB extends our clinical and market reach further upstream in the care of acute heart disease patients,
including direct usage in the intensive care unit, cath lab and surgery suite. We began selling IABs in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.

To support the IAB, we developed our iPulse combination console. The iPulse console is also designed to support our AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems, other
manufacturers� intra-aortic balloons and products we may offer in the future. We believe the ability of the iPulse console to support multiple devices will make it
more attractive than consoles designed to operate a single device. The new iPulse console will support procedures with associated Medicare reimbursement that
extends across four diagnostic related groups, which further enhances its attractiveness to customers.

We received 510(k) clearance from the FDA for our new IAB in December 2006 and CE Mark approval in January 2007. The iPulse console has CE mark
approval in Europe but has not been approved for commercial sale in the United States. To obtain FDA approval of the iPulse console, we have filed a supplement
to our PMA application for our existing AB5000 console. We believe there will be U.S. market demand for our iPulse console following FDA supplement
approval anticipated later this summer; however, we cannot guarantee approval.

AbioCor

Our AbioCor Implantable Replacement Heart is the first completely self-contained artificial heart. The complete AbioCor system consists internally of a thoracic
unit, a rechargeable battery, an electronics package and a power receiver coil, and externally, a power transmitter coil, power and battery pack, handheld alarm
monitor, patient home electronics and an in hospital console. Once implanted, the AbioCor system does not penetrate the skin, reducing the chance of infection.
This technology provides patients with mobility and remote diagnostics.

Designed to sustain the body�s circulation, the AbioCor is intended for end-stage biventricular heart failure patients whose other treatment options have been
exhausted. Patients with advanced age, impaired organ function or cancer are, in most circumstances, ineligible for a heart transplant and are potential candidates
to receive the AbioCor implantable heart.

We received Humanitarian Device Exemption, or HDE, approval from the FDA for the AbioCor in September 2006. HDE approval signifies that no comparable
alternative therapy exists for patients facing imminent death without the technology. Under this approval, only a limited number of patients may receive the
AbioCor per year. Under HDE approval, the FDA may request a panel review of the post-approval study data.

We expect to begin selling the AbioCor in late calendar 2007 in a controlled roll-out to approximately five heart centers in the U.S. We expect eventually to
expand availability to up to ten hospitals in the U.S., including qualified clinical trial sites and additional qualified centers once they have completed a
comprehensive and rigorous training program. We expect this training period to take six to eight months. We are unable to determine how many patient
procedures will be performed after the respective centers are trained. We do not expect that revenues from sales of the AbioCor will be a material portion of our
total revenues for the foreseeable future.

Cannulae

Each of our AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems requires two cannulae, or tubes that connect the ventricle or blood pump to the heart and an associated artery. We
offer a variety of cannulae. We recently introduced our new integrated cannula system, which was approved by the FDA in July 2006. The new cannula, which is
easier to implant and can be removed through a small incision, has the potential for use off-pump (also called beating heart) with minimally invasive procedures.
For example, although removal of the cannulae requires a surgical procedure, it does not require a sternotomy, a substantially more invasive procedure that
separates the breastbone in order to access the heart. Moreover, because the AB5000 and the BVS 5000 blood pumps use the same cannulae, clinicians can
seamlessly transfer patients from one device to another without requiring an additional surgical procedure.
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Research and Product Development

Our research and development efforts are focused on developing a broader portfolio of products across the continuum of care in heart recovery, primarily focused
in the area of circulatory care. In the past few years, our research and development efforts have helped us to significantly expand our product portfolio, and we
have eight disposable products that have either been approved or cleared by the FDA or have received CE mark approval. In addition, we have a number of new
products at various stages of development.

In January 2007 we announced that we are conducting pre-clinical trials for a catheter-based heart pump to provide left-ventricular support to pediatric patients.
This device is similar to the Impella 2.5 and is intended to provide support to patients requiring preconditioning before a cardiac intervention, or to recover patients
who cannot be weaned from bypass, or who have myocarditis. We have designed the technology to operate as either a pulsatile device that can provide up to 120
beats per minute or as a continuous flow device. We estimate that the device will provide circulatory support for approximately two weeks.

Over the last 25 years, we have gained substantial expertise in circulatory support while developing our AbioCor Implantable Replacement Heart, the first
completely self-contained artificial heart. We used this expertise to develop the AB5000, and we intend to continue to use this experience to develop additional
circulatory care products. We are also working on our next-generation implantable replacement heart, the AbioCor II, which is approximately 30% smaller than
the existing AbioCor and is being designed with a goal of five-year reliability.

We cannot assure you that any of our products under development will achieve the intended clinical goals or that any of them will receive regulatory approval for
commercial sale in the United States or abroad.

As of March 31, 2007, research and development staff consisted of 82 professional and technical personnel, including 28 engineers with advanced degrees,
covering disciplines such as electrical engineering, mechanical engineering, computer science, reliability engineering, fluid mechanics, materials and physiology.

We expended $13.4 million, $16.7 million, and $22.3 million on research and development in fiscal years 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively. Our research and
development expenditures include costs related to clinical trials, including ongoing pilot clinical trials for our Impella products.

Sales, Clinical Support, Marketing and Field Service

As of March 31, 2007, our worldwide sales, clinical support, marketing and field service teams included 87 full-time employees, 64 of whom are in the U.S. and
23 of whom are in Europe. Since March 31, 2004, we have increased the number of our direct sales and clinical personnel from 17 to 60 employees covering the
U.S., France and Germany. In the U.S., we now have 26 direct sales representatives and 17 clinical support personnel.

Our clinical support personnel consist primarily of registered nurses with experience in either the surgery suite or the cath lab, and they play a critical role in
training current and prospective customers in the use of our products. To enhance our global distribution and to augment our efforts to establish recovery as the
goal for all acute cardiac attacks, we intend to increase our global sales and clinical headcount by approximately two to four sales and clinical employees per
quarter during fiscal year 2008.

As of March 31, 2007, we have international sales and distribution agreements for select products in Australia, China, Italy, Japan, Latin America and Spain. We
also use distributors in certain European and Middle Eastern countries where we have chosen not to sell directly to medical centers. In fiscal years 2005, 2006, and
2007, approximately 8%, 13%, and 11%, respectively, of our product revenues were derived from international sales.

We recently entered into a five-year distribution agreement with Medix Japan Inc. The agreement provides for distribution of our AB5000, BVS 5000, and Impella
2.5 and 5.0 products following regulatory approval in Japan. Medix intends to initiate clinical trials in Japan during our fiscal year 2008. The agreement includes a
minimum purchase commitment of $11 million for the Impella products within the first 18 months following Impella regulatory approvals in Japan. The
agreement also includes a minimum purchase commitment of $5 million for our other products that begins in our first quarter of fiscal year 2008. If the purchase
commitments are not met, our available remedy is to terminate the agreement.

Manufacturing

We manufacture our products in Danvers, Massachusetts and Aachen, Germany. Our United States operations manufacture the BVS 5000, AB5000, AbioCor,
IAB, iPulse, and other products under development. Our Aachen, Germany facility manufactures all of our Impella
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products and other products under development. In addition, we rely on third-party suppliers to provide us with some components used in our existing products
and products under development. For example, we outsource the manufacturing of all of our consoles, other than final assembly and testing.

We believe our existing manufacturing facilities give us the physical capacity to produce sufficient quantities of products to meet anticipated demand for at least
the next twelve months. However, we will continue to monitor market conditions and demand and evaluate the potential need for expanded capacity in the future.
Both of our manufacturing facilities are ISO 13485:2003 certified and operate under the FDA�s good manufacturing practice requirements set forth in the current
quality system regulation, known as QSR.

Intellectual Property

We have developed significant know-how and proprietary technology, upon which our business depends. To protect our know-how and proprietary technology,
we rely on trade secret laws, patents, copyrights, trademarks, and confidentiality agreements and contracts. However, these methods afford only limited protection.
Others may independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information or technology, gain access to our trade secrets or disclose or use such secrets or
technology without our approval.

A substantial portion of our intellectual property rights relating to the AB5000, the BVS 5000, the AbioCor and the AbioCor II is in the form of trade secrets,
rather than patents. We protect our trade secrets and proprietary knowledge in part through confidentiality agreements with employees, consultants and other
parties. We cannot assure you that our trade secrets will not become known to or be independently developed by our competitors.

As of May 31, 2007, we own or have rights to 69 U.S. patents and at least 95 foreign patents. Of our U.S. patents, 19 are related to the AbioCor Implantable
Replacement Heart, 17 are related to Impella products and 23 are related to other technologies. Our portfolio also includes ten patents related to an artificial heart
developed by the Pennsylvania State University, to which we have an exclusive worldwide license. Our U.S. patents have expiration dates ranging from June 17,
2007 to October 24, 2026. Of our foreign patents, one is related to the BVS 5000 Biventricular Support System and 94 are related to Impella products. Our foreign
patents have expiration dates ranging from April 4, 2016 to August 8, 2023. We also own or have rights to certain pending U.S. and foreign patent applications.
We believe patents will issue pursuant to such applications, but cannot guarantee it. Moreover, neither the timing of any issuance, the scope of protection, nor the
actual issue date of these pending applications can be forecasted with precision. Where we have licensed patent rights from third parties, we are generally required
to pay royalties.

Our patents may not provide us with competitive advantages. Our pending or future patent applications may not be issued. The patents of others may render our
patents obsolete, limit our ability to patent future innovations, or otherwise have an adverse effect on our ability to conduct business. Because foreign patents may
afford less protection than U.S. patents, they may not adequately protect our technology.

The medical device industry is characterized by a large number of patents and by frequent and substantial intellectual property litigation. Our products and
technologies could infringe on the proprietary rights of third parties. If third parties successfully assert infringement or other claims against us, we may not be able
to sell our products or we may have to pay significant damages and ongoing royalties. In addition, patent or intellectual property disputes or litigation may be
costly, result in product development delays, or divert the efforts and attention of our management and technical personnel. If any such disputes or litigation arise,
we may seek to enter into a royalty or licensing arrangement. However, such an arrangement may not be available on commercially acceptable terms, if at all. We
may decide, in the alternative, to litigate the claims or seek to design around the patented or otherwise protected proprietary technology.

The U.S. government may obtain certain rights to use or disclose technical data developed under government contracts that supported the development of some of
our products. We retain the right to obtain patents on any inventions developed under those contracts, provided we follow prescribed procedures and are subject to
a non-exclusive, non-transferable, royalty-free license to the U.S. government.

Competition

Competition among providers of treatments for the failing heart is intense and subject to rapid technological change and evolving industry requirements and
standards. We compete with companies that have substantially greater or broader financial, product development and sales and marketing resources and experience
than we do. These competitors may develop superior products or products of similar quality at the same or lower prices. Moreover, improvements in current or
new technologies may make them technically equivalent or superior to our products in addition to providing cost or other advantages. Other advances in medical
technology, biotechnology and pharmaceuticals may reduce the size of the potential markets for our products or render those products obsolete.

Our customers frequently have limited budgets. As a result, our products compete against a broad range of medical devices and other therapies for these limited
funds. Our success will depend in large part upon our ability to enhance our existing products, to develop new products to meet regulatory and customer
requirements, and to achieve market acceptance. We believe that important competitive factors with
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respect to the development and commercialization of our products include the relative speed with which we can develop products, establish clinical utility,
complete clinical trials and regulatory approval processes, obtain reimbursement, and supply commercial quantities of the product to the market.

The AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems can assume the full pumping function of the heart. The FDA approved these systems as recovery devices for the treatment of
patients with potentially reversible heart failure. These products compete with a temporary cardiac assist device from Thoratec Corporation, which is also capable
of assuming the full pumping function of the heart and is today approved for post-cardiotomy support only. The Thoratec device was originally approved for
bridge-to-transplant indications, and we believe bridge-to-transplant continues to be the primary use of the device. In addition, the AB5000 and BVS 5000
compete with other blood pumps that are used in medical centers for a variety of applications, such as intra-aortic balloon pumps, including those offered by
Datascope and Arrow International, and centrifugal pumps. Levitronix is conducting clinical trials in the U.S. for a device that may compete with our heart assist
products in some applications. Levitronix has licensed this product to Thoratec Corporation for distribution in the U.S. To our knowledge, these pumps are not
FDA approved. These pumps are cleared under a 510(k) in which their labeling does not allow for specific indications beyond 6 hours of use. These pumps are
limited to either providing partial pumping support of failing hearts, or are non-pulsatile, or are not recommended for the duration of support generally required for
recovery. The FDA provided 510(k) clearance for a product designed by CardiacAssist, Inc. that may compete with our products. Approval by the FDA of
products that compete directly with our products could increase competitive pricing and other pressures. We believe that we will compete with such products
based primarily on clinical effectiveness based on scientific evidence, global customer relationships, and customer relations.

We are aware of other heart replacement device research efforts in the U.S., Canada, Europe and Japan, but we are not aware of any plans for any other totally
implantable replacement heart to commence clinical trials in the U.S. or anywhere in the world. In October 2004, the FDA approved Syncardia Systems�
CardioWest Total Artificial Heart for use as a bridge to transplantation in cardiac transplant-eligible candidates at risk of imminent death from non-reversible
biventricular failure. Unlike our AbioCor, the CardioWest heart is not fully implantable. In addition, there are a number of companies�including Thoratec
Corporation, Jarvik Heart, HeartWare, World Heart Corporation, MicroMed Technology, Ventracor and several early-stage companies�that are developing
permanent heart assist products, including implantable left ventricular assist devices, or LVADs, and miniaturized rotary ventricular assist devices, that may
address markets that overlap with certain segments of the markets targeted by our products. In addition to these devices, several companies and institutions have
been for many years investigating xenotransplantation, the transplantation of a heart from another species, as a potential therapy. Research is also being conducted
by others to develop gene and cell therapy potentially to reverse the disease process or to supplant diseased heart cells.

Third-Party Reimbursement

Our products and services are generally purchased by healthcare institutions that rely on third-party payers to cover and reimburse the costs of related patient care.
In the United States, as well as in many foreign countries, government-funded or private insurance programs pay the cost of a significant portion of a patient�s
medical expenses. No uniform policy of coverage or reimbursement for medical technology exists among all these payers. Therefore, coverage and reimbursement
can differ significantly from payer to payer.

Third-party payers may include government healthcare programs such as Medicare or Medicaid, private insurers or managed care organizations. The Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services, or CMS, is responsible for administering the Medicare program and, along with its contractors, establishes coverage and
reimbursement policies for the Medicare program. Because a large percentage of the population for which our products are intended includes elderly individuals
who are Medicare beneficiaries, Medicare�s coverage and reimbursement policies are particularly significant to our business. In addition, private payers often
follow the coverage and reimbursement policies of Medicare. We cannot assure you that government or private third-party payers will cover and reimburse the
procedures using our products in whole or in part in the future or that payment rates will be adequate.

Medicare payment may be made, in appropriate cases, for procedures performed in the in-patient hospital setting using our technology. Medicare generally
reimburses the facilities in which the procedures are performed based upon prospectively determined amounts. For hospital in-patient stays, the prospective
payment generally is determined by the patient�s condition and other patient data and procedures performed during the in-patient stay, using a classification system
known as diagnosis-related groups, or DRGs. Prospective rates are adjusted for, among other things, regional differences, co-morbidity, and complications.
Hospitals performing in-patient procedures using our devices generally do not receive separate Medicare reimbursement for the specific costs of purchasing or
implanting our products. Rather, reimbursement for these costs is bundled with the DRG-based payments made to hospitals for the procedures during which our
devices are implanted, removed, repaired or replaced. Because prospective payments are based on predetermined rates and may be less than a hospital�s actual costs
in furnishing care, hospitals have incentives to lower their in-patient operating costs by utilizing products, devices and supplies that will reduce the length of
inpatient stays, decrease labor or otherwise lower their costs.

Coverage and reimbursements for procedures to implant, remove, replace or repair the AB5000 and BVS 5000 are well-established in the United States market.
For instance, Medicare covers the use of VADs, such as our AB5000 and BVS 5000 devices, when used for support of blood circulation post-cardiotomy, as a
temporary life-support system until a human heart becomes available for transplant, or as therapy for patients who require permanent mechanical cardiac support.
Medicare does not, however, cover the use of VADs as a permanent replacement
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for the human heart or artificial heart. CMS recently increased Medicare reimbursement for patients that recover during an in-patient stay using external VADs,
such as our AB5000 and BVS 5000 devices, to levels similar to those for patients who undergo heart transplants. Reimbursements for patients who do not recover
remain at lower levels.

In addition to payments to hospitals for procedures using our technology, Medicare makes separate payments to physicians for their professional services when
they perform surgeries to implant, remove, replace or repair our AB5000 or BVS 5000 devices. Physicians generally bill for such services using a coding system
known as Current Procedural Terminology, or CPT, codes. Physician services performed in connection with the implantation, removal, replacement or repair of
our AB5000 or BVS 5000 devices are billed using a variety of CPT codes. Generally, Medicare payment levels for physician services are based on the Medicare
Physician Fee Schedule and are revised annually by CMS.

Coverage and reimbursement in the United States for our other products will depend upon, among other things, our ability to obtain the FDA approvals or
clearances to market such products. If and when we obtain FDA approval or clearance for our new products, such as our Impella products and iPulse console, we
anticipate that third-party payers, including both CMS and commercial insurance companies, will reimburse hospitals and physicians under existing billing codes
or general procedural codes for newer technologies and we believe that procedures targeted for use with our products are generally already reimbursable under
governmental programs and most private plans. Although certain costs associated with the use of our Impella 2.5 and 5.0 products in qualifying clinical trials are
reimbursed, we cannot assure you that, if these products receive FDA approval or clearance, the commercial use of these products will also be reimbursed.

Medicare does not cover the use of artificial hearts, either as a permanent replacement for a human heart or as a temporary life-support system until a human heart
becomes available for transplant. This means that our AbioCor system, when used as a replacement for the human heart, is not covered by Medicare. In December
2006, the Medicare Evidence Development and Coverage Advisory Committee, a Medicare advisory group that offers expert clinical advice, recommended to
CMS that Medicare cover and reimburse the costs of HDE-approved technologies, such as our AbioCor system, when used in qualifying clinical studies. However,
CMS is not required to follow the recommendations of its advisory group or otherwise incorporate their recommendations into coverage policy. In April 2007,
CMS issued a draft of its clinical trial policy that did not include this recommendation. The policy is subject to public comment and a final decision is expected in
July 2007. If the final coverage policy does not include the recommendation of the committee, we intend to seek other potential avenues for reimbursement of our
AbioCor system.

In general, third-party reimbursement programs in the U.S. and abroad, whether government-funded or commercially insured, are developing a variety of
increasingly sophisticated methods of controlling healthcare costs, including prospective reimbursement and capitation programs, group purchasing, redesign of
benefits, second opinions required prior to major surgery, careful review of bills, encouragement of healthier lifestyles and exploration of more cost-effective
methods of delivering healthcare. These types of cost-containment programs, as well as legislative or regulatory changes to reimbursement policies, could limit the
amount which healthcare providers may be willing to pay for our medical devices.

Government Regulation

The healthcare industry, and thus our business, is subject to extensive federal, state, local and foreign regulation. Some of the pertinent laws have not been
definitively interpreted by the regulatory authorities or the courts, and their provisions are open to a variety of interpretations. In addition, these laws and their
interpretations are subject to change.

Premarket Regulation

The FDA strictly regulates medical devices under the authority of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, or FFDCA, and the regulations promulgated under
the FFDCA. The FFDCA and the implementing regulations govern, among other things, the following activities relating to our medical devices: preclinical and
clinical testing, design, manufacture, safety, efficacy, labeling, storage, record keeping, sales and distribution, post-market adverse event reporting, and advertising
and promotion.

In the U.S., medical devices are classified into one of three classes (i.e., Class I, II or III) based on the statutory framework described in the FFDCA. Class III
devices, which are typically life-sustaining, life-supporting or implantable devices, or new devices that have been found not to be substantially equivalent to
legally marketed devices, must generally receive premarket approval, or PMA, by the FDA to ensure their safety and effectiveness.

When clinical trials of a device are required in order to obtain FDA approval, the sponsor of the trial is required to file an Investigational Device Exemption,
known as an IDE, application before commencing clinical trials. The IDE application must be supported by data, which typically include the results of extensive
device bench testing, animal testing performed in conformance with Good Laboratory Practices, and formal laboratory testing and documentation in accordance
with appropriate design controls and scientific justification.

The FDA reviews and must approve an IDE before a study may begin in the United States. In addition, the study must be approved by an Institutional Review
Board, or IRB, for each clinical site. When all approvals are obtained, the study may be initiated to evaluate the device.
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The FDA, and the IRB at each institution at which a clinical trial is being performed, may suspend a clinical trial at any time for various reasons, including a belief
that the subjects are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk. All clinical studies of investigational devices must be conducted in compliance with FDA�s
extensive requirements. During a study, we would be required to comply with the FDA�s IDE requirements for investigator selection, trial monitoring, reporting,
record keeping and prohibitions on the promotion of investigational devices or making safety or efficacy claims for them. The investigators must obtain patient
informed consent, rigorously follow the investigational plan and study protocol, control the disposition of investigational devices, and comply with all reporting
and record keeping requirements. Following completion of a study, we would need to collect, analyze and present the data in an appropriate submission to the
FDA, either a 510(k) premarket notification or a PMA.

In the 510(k) process, the FDA reviews a premarket notification and determines whether or not a proposed device is �substantially equivalent� to �predicate devices.�
In making this determination, the FDA compares the proposed device to predicate devices. If the intended use and safety and effectiveness are comparable to a
predicate device, the device may be cleared for marketing. A device that raises a new question of safety or effectiveness is not eligible for the 510(k) clearance
pathway and must undergo the PMA approval process. The FDA�s 510(k) clearance pathway usually takes from four to 12 months, but it can last longer and
clearance is never assured. In reviewing a premarket notification, the FDA may request additional information, including clinical data. After a device receives
510(k) clearance, any modification that could significantly affect its safety or effectiveness, or that would constitute a major change in its intended use, requires a
new 510(k) clearance or could require PMA approval. The FDA requires each manufacturer to make this determination in the first instance, but the agency can
review any such decision. If the FDA disagrees with a manufacturer�s decision not to seek a new 510(k) clearance, the agency may retroactively require the
manufacturer to seek 510(k) clearance or PMA approval. The FDA also can require the manufacturer to cease marketing and/or recall the modified device until
510(k) clearance or PMA approval is obtained. Also, the manufacturer may be subject to significant regulatory fines or penalties.

Certain Class III devices that were on the market before May 28, 1976, known as preamendments Class III devices, and devices that are determined to be
substantially equivalent to them, can be brought to market through the 510(k) process until the FDA, by regulation, calls for PMA applications for the devices. In
addition, the FFDCA requires the FDA either to down-classify preamendments Class III devices to Class I or Class II, or to publish a classification regulation
retaining the devices in Class III. Manufacturers of preamendments Class III devices that the FDA retains in Class III must have PMA applications accepted by the
FDA for filing within 90 days after the publication of a final regulation in which the FDA calls for PMA applications. Failure to meet the deadline can lead the
FDA to prevent continued marketing of the device during the PMA application review period. The IAB received 510(k) clearance as a preamendments Class III
device. The Impella 2.5 for short duration use would also be a preamendments Class III device, if 510(k) clearance is obtained. If the FDA calls for a PMA for a
preamendments Class III device, a PMA must be submitted for the device even if the device has already received 510(k) clearance; however, if the FDA
down-classifies a preamendments Class III device to Class I or Class II, a PMA application will not be required.

The PMA approval pathway requires proof of the safety and effectiveness of the device to the FDA�s satisfaction. The PMA approval pathway is much more
costly, lengthy and uncertain. In the PMA process, the FDA examines detailed data to assess the safety and effectiveness of the device. This information includes
design, development, manufacture, labeling, advertising, preclinical testing and clinical study data. Prior to approving the PMA, the FDA will conduct an
inspection of the manufacturing facilities and the clinical sites where the supporting study was conducted. The facility inspection evaluates the company�s
compliance with the QSR. An inspection of clinical sites evaluates compliance with the IDE requirements. Typically, the FDA will convene an advisory panel
meeting to seek review of the data presented in the PMA. The panel�s recommendation is given substantial weight, but is not binding on the agency. If the FDA�s
evaluation is favorable, the PMA is approved, and the device may be marketed in the United States. The FDA may approve the PMA with post-approval
conditions intended to ensure the safety and effectiveness of the device including, among other things, restrictions on labeling, promotion, sale and distribution.
Failure to comply with the conditions of approval can result in material adverse enforcement action, including the loss or withdrawal of the approval. Even after
approval of a PMA, a new PMA or PMA supplement is required in the event of a modification to the device, its labeling or its manufacturing process.
Supplements to a PMA often require the submission of the same type of information required for an original PMA, except that the supplement is generally limited
to that information needed to support the proposed change from the product covered by the original PMA.

By regulation, the FDA has 180 days to review a PMA application, during which time an advisory committee may evaluate the application and provide
recommendations to the FDA. While the FDA has approved PMA applications within the allotted time period, reviews can occur over a significantly protracted
period, usually 18 to 36 months but sometimes longer, and a number of devices have never been approved for marketing. This process is lengthy and expensive,
and there can be no assurance that FDA approval will be obtained.

Both a 510(k) and a PMA, if cleared or approved, may include significant limitations on the indicated uses for which a product may be marketed. FDA
enforcement policy prohibits the promotion of approved medical devices for unapproved uses. In addition, product approvals can be withdrawn for failure to
comply with regulatory requirements or the occurrence of unforeseen problems following initial marketing.

In addition, certain devices can be distributed under a Humanitarian Device Exemption, or HDE, rather than a PMA. In order for a device to be eligible for an
HDE, a qualifying target patient population of less than 4,000 patients per year for which there is no other available therapy must be approved by the FDA. The
FDA�s approval of an HDE to treat that qualifying patient population then requires
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demonstration that the device is safe for its intended application, that it is potentially effective, and that the probable benefits outweigh the associated risks.

Our AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems are approved by the FDA for heart recovery for patients who have undergone successful cardiac surgery and subsequently
develop low cardiac output, or patients who suffer from acute cardiac disorders leading to hemodynamic instability. In 1992, the FDA approved our PMA for the
BVS 5000. In 1996 and 1997, the FDA approved the use of the BVS 5000 for additional indications, expanding its use to the treatment of all patients with
potentially reversible heart failure. In April 2003, the AB5000 Circulatory Support System Console was approved under a PMA supplement, and in September
2003 a PMA supplement for the AB5000 blood pump was approved.

To support applications for premarket approval, we have begun pilot clinical trials for our Impella 2.5 and 5.0 products in the U.S. In the Impella 2.5 pilot trial, the
proposed indication for use of our Impella 2.5 is support during high-risk angioplasty and subsequent to the procedure for up to five days. In the Impella 5.0 pilot
trial, the proposed indication for use includes post-cardiotomy patients who have been weaned from the heart-lung machine but could potentially benefit from
some hemodynamic support. We may conduct additional clinical trials in the future to address additional indications for use.

In May 2006, we announced that our primary regulatory pathway for the Impella 2.5 will be to seek PMA approval. Based on our current clinical trial, we expect
that we will initially seek approval of the device for the support of high-risk angioplasty. In April 2007, we announced the completion of the enrollment of 20
patients in the pilot clinical trial of the Impella 2.5. The trial will be completed after we have concluded all necessary post-enrollment patient monitoring. In
addition, we announced in February 2007 that we had also made a submission seeking 510(k) clearance for the Impella 2.5 for short duration use (up to six hours).
The FDA recently responded to our 510(k) submission with a letter indicating that the FDA believes that the technological characteristics of the Impella 2.5 raise
new questions of safety and effectiveness that are not addressed by the predicate devices we identified in our 510(k) submission. The FDA stated it is unaware of a
predicate device raising the same questions and asked us to identify a predicate device that does so. We intend to respond to the FDA�s letter by submitting
additional data to the FDA attempting to demonstrate that the device does not raise a new question of safety or effectiveness, and we believe that our response will
be successful in answering the FDA�s concerns. We may also amend our 510(k) submission to identify additional predicate devices. If we succeed in addressing
these concerns, we expect to receive additional questions and requests for information from the FDA as we pursue 510(k) clearance of the Impella 2.5. If the FDA
deems any of our responses unsatisfactory, we will not receive 510(k) clearance. We cannot assure you that we will successfully address the FDA�s concerns or
obtain 510(k) clearance for the Impella 2.5 on a timely basis, or at all. We will continue our primary regulatory pathway of seeking PMA approval of the Impella
2.5 while we respond to current and any future inquiries from the FDA on the pending 510(k) clearance submission. If we receive 510(k) clearance from the FDA
for short duration use, we intend to launch the Impella 2.5 for commercial sale in the U.S. for that use while continuing the PMA pathway for the Impella 2.5 to
obtain FDA approval to promote the Impella 2.5 for high-risk angioplasty and/or other specific indications for longer-term support.

We received FDA clearance for our new IAB in December 2006. We have submitted our iPulse console for FDA approval by filing a PMA supplement to the
PMA for our existing AB5000 console.

In January 2001, the FDA granted an IDE providing us with regulatory permission to commence the initial clinical trial of the AbioCor. In September 2003, a
Humanitarian Use Device designation was approved by the Office of Orphan Product Development, paving the way for our HDE submission in September 2004.
In September 2006 we received HDE approval from the FDA for the AbioCor.

Postmarket Regulation

The medical devices that we manufacture and distribute pursuant to FDA clearances or approvals are subject to continuing regulation by the FDA and other
regulatory authorities. The FDA reviews design and manufacturing practices, labeling and record keeping, and manufacturers� required reports of adverse
experience and other information to identify potential problems with marketed medical devices. Among other FDA requirements, we must comply with the FDA�s
good manufacturing practice regulations. These QSR regulations govern the methods used in, and the facilities and controls used for, the design, manufacture,
packaging and servicing of all finished medical devices intended for human use. We must also comply with Medical Devices Reporting, or MDR, which requires
that a firm report to the FDA any incident in which its product may have caused or contributed to a death or serious injury, or in which its product malfunctioned
and, if the malfunction were to recur, it would be likely to cause or contribute to a death or serious injury. Labeling, advertising, and promotional activities are
subject to scrutiny by the FDA and, in certain circumstances, by the Federal Trade Commission. Current FDA enforcement policy prohibits the marketing of
approved medical devices for unapproved uses.

We are subject to routine inspection by the FDA and other regulatory authorities for compliance with QSR and MDR requirements, as well as other applicable
regulations. If the FDA were to conclude that we are not in compliance with applicable laws or regulations, or that any of our medical devices are ineffective or
pose an unreasonable health risk, the FDA could ban such medical devices, detain or seize adulterated or misbranded medical devices, order a recall, repair,
replacement, or refund of such devices, and require us to notify health professionals and others that the devices present unreasonable risks of substantial harm to
the public health. The FDA may also impose
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operating restrictions, enjoin and restrain certain violations of applicable law pertaining to medical devices, and assess civil or criminal fines and penalties against
our officers, employees, or us. The FDA may also recommend prosecution to the Department of Justice.

The FDA often requires post market surveillance, or PMS, for significant risk devices, such as VADs, that require ongoing collection of clinical data during
commercialization that must be gathered, analyzed and submitted to the FDA periodically for up to several years. These PMS data collection requirements are
often burdensome and expensive and have an effect on the PMA approval status. The failure to comply with the FDA�s regulations can result in enforcement
action, including seizure, injunction, prosecution, civil fines and penalties, recall and/or suspension of FDA approval. The export of devices such as ours is also
subject to regulation in certain instances.

The FDA, in cooperation with U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP), administers controls over the import of medical devices into the U.S. The CBP imposes
its own regulatory requirements on the import of medical devices, including inspection and possible sanctions for noncompliance. The FDA also administers
certain controls over the export of medical devices from the U.S. International sales of our medical devices that have not received FDA approval are subject to
FDA export requirements.

International Regulation

We are also subject to regulation in each of the foreign countries in which we sell our products. Many of the regulations applicable to our products in these
countries are similar to those of the FDA. The European Union requires that medical devices such as ours comply with the Medical Device Directive or the Active
Implantable Medical Device Directive, which includes quality system and CE certification requirements. To obtain a CE Mark in the European Union, defined
products must meet minimum standards of safety and quality (i.e., the essential requirements) and then comply with one or more of a selection of conformity
routes. A Notified Body assesses the quality management systems of the manufacturer and the product conformity to the essential and other requirements within
the Medical Device Directive. In the European Community, we are also required to maintain certain International Organization for Standardization (ISO)
certifications in order to sell our products. Our BVS 5000, AB5000, Impella products, IAB and iPulse console are CE marked and available for sale in the
European Union.

Fraud and Abuse Laws

Our business is regulated by laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse, including anti-kickback laws and false claims laws. Violations of these laws are
punishable by significant criminal and civil sanctions, including, in some instances, exclusion from participation in federal and state healthcare programs,
including Medicare and Medicaid. Because of the far-reaching nature of these laws, we may be required to alter one or more of our practices to be in compliance
with these laws. Evolving interpretations of current laws, or the adoption of new laws or regulations, could adversely affect our arrangements with customers and
physicians. In addition, any violation of these laws or regulations could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Anti-Kickback Statute

Subject to a number of statutory exceptions, the federal Anti-Kickback Statute prohibits persons from knowingly and willfully soliciting, offering, receiving or
providing remuneration, directly or indirectly, in cash or in kind, in exchange for or to induce either the referral of an individual for, or the furnishing,
recommending, or arranging for, a good or service for which payment may be made under a federal health care program such as Medicare and Medicaid. The term
�remuneration� has been broadly interpreted to include anything of value, including gifts, discounts, the furnishing of supplies or equipment, credit arrangements,
waiver of payments, and providing anything of value at less than fair market value. The Office of the Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, or the OIG, is primarily responsible for enforcing the federal Anti-Kickback Statute and generally for identifying fraud and abuse activities
affecting government healthcare programs.

Penalties for violating the federal Anti-Kickback Statute include substantial criminal fines and/or imprisonment, substantial civil fines and possible exclusion from
participation in federal health care programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. Many states have adopted prohibitions similar to the federal Anti-Kickback Statute,
some of which apply to the referral of patients for healthcare services reimbursed by any source, not only by the Medicare and Medicaid programs, and do not
include comparable exceptions.

The OIG has issued safe harbor regulations that identify activities and business relationships that are deemed safe from prosecution under the federal
Anti-Kickback Statute. There are safe harbors for various types of arrangements, including certain investment interests, leases, personal service arrangements, and
management contracts. The failure of a particular activity to comply with all requirements of an applicable safe harbor regulation does not mean that the activity
violates the federal Anti-Kickback Statute or that prosecution will be pursued. However, activities and business arrangements that do not fully satisfy each
applicable safe harbor may result in increased scrutiny by government enforcement authorities such as the OIG.

We have various arrangements with customers and physicians that may implicate these laws. For example, some physicians who use our products also provide
medical advisory and other consulting and personal services. Some of these physician arrangements may not meet Anti-
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Kickback Statute safe harbor protections, which may result in increased scrutiny by government authorities having responsibility for enforcing these laws.
Additionally, we do not maintain a formal compliance plan concerning interactions with healthcare professionals nor have we formally adopted the
recommendations issued by the OIG. The OIG may interpret the absence of such formal plan negatively in the case of an enforcement action, which could result in
a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

If our operations are found to be in violation of these or similar laws or regulations, we or our officers may face significant civil and criminal penalties, damages,
fines, imprisonment, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Any violations may lead to curtailment or restructuring of our operations. Any
penalties, damages, fines, or curtailment or restructuring of our operations could adversely affect our ability to operate our business and our financial results. The
risk of our being found in violation of these laws is increased by the fact that some of these laws are open to a variety of interpretations. Any action against us for
violation of these laws, even if we successfully defend against it, could cause us to incur significant legal expenses, divert our management�s attention from the
operation of our business and damage our reputation. If enforcement action were to occur, our reputation and our business and financial condition could be
harmed, even if we were to prevail or settle the action. Similarly, if the physicians or other providers or entities with whom we do business are found not to
comply with applicable laws, they may be subject to sanctions, which could also have a negative impact on our business.

Federal False Claims Act

The federal False Claims Act prohibits the knowing filing or causing the filing of a false claim or the knowing use of false statements to obtain payment from the
federal government. When an entity is determined to have violated the False Claims Act, it must pay three times the actual damages sustained by the government,
plus mandatory civil penalties for each separate false claim. Private individuals can file suits under the False Claims Act on behalf of the government. These
lawsuits are known as �qui tam� actions, and the individuals bringing such suits, sometimes known as �relators� or, more commonly, �whistleblowers,� may share in any
amounts paid by the entity to the government in fines or settlement. In addition, certain states have enacted laws modeled after the federal False Claims Act. Qui
tam actions have increased significantly in recent years, causing greater numbers of healthcare companies to have to defend a false claim action, pay fines or be
excluded from Medicare, Medicaid or other federal or state healthcare programs as a result of an investigation arising out of such action.

HIPAA

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, created two new federal crimes: healthcare fraud and false statements relating to
healthcare matters. The healthcare fraud statute prohibits knowingly and willfully executing, or attempting to execute, a scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit
program, including private payers. A violation of this statute is a felony and may result in fines, imprisonment or exclusion from government-sponsored programs.
The false statements statute prohibits knowingly and willfully falsifying, concealing or covering up a material fact or making any materially false, fictitious or
fraudulent statement in connection with the delivery of or payment for healthcare benefits, items or services. A violation of this statute is a felony and may result
in fines or imprisonment.

HIPAA also protects the security and privacy of individually identifiable health information maintained or transmitted by healthcare providers, health plans and
healthcare clearinghouses. HIPAA restricts the use and disclosure of patient health information, including patient records. Although we believe that HIPAA does
not apply to us directly, most of our customers have significant obligations under HIPAA, and we intend to cooperate with our customers and others to ensure
compliance with HIPAA with respect to patient information that comes into our possession. Failure to comply with HIPAA obligations can entail criminal
penalties. Some states have also enacted rigorous laws or regulations protecting the security and privacy of patient information. If we fail to comply with these
laws and regulations, we could face additional sanctions.

Employees

As of March 31, 2007, we had 324 full-time employees, including:

� 82 in product engineering, research and development, and regulatory;

� 87 in sales, clinical support, marketing and field service;

� 91 in manufacturing and quality control; and

� 64 in general and administration.
We routinely enter into contractual agreements with our employees, which typically include confidentiality and non-competition commitments. Our employees are
not represented by unions. We consider our employee relations to be good. If we were unable to attract and retain qualified personnel in the future, our operations
could be negatively impacted.
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Our Corporate Information

We are a Delaware corporation and commenced operations in 1981. Our principal executive offices are located at 22 Cherry Hill Drive, Danvers, Massachusetts
01923, and our telephone number is (978) 646-1400. Our web address is www.abiomed.com. We make available free of charge through the Investors section of
our website, all reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We do not incorporate the information on our website into this report, and you should
not consider it part of this report.
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ITEM 1A.    RISK FACTORS
An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider these risks as well as the
other information we include or incorporate by reference in this report, including our consolidated financial statements and the related notes. The risks and
uncertainties we have described are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties of which we are unaware or that we deem immaterial may also
adversely affect our business. If any of these risks materializes, the trading price of our common stock could fall and you might lose all or part of your investment.

This section includes or refers to forward-looking statements. You should read the explanation of the qualifications and limitations on such forward-looking
statements discussed at the beginning of the report.

Risks Related to Our Business

We have not operated at a profit and do not expect to be profitable in our fiscal year 2008.

We have had net losses in each of the past three fiscal years. We plan to make significant expenditures in fiscal 2008 and subsequent fiscal years for, among other
things, the expansion of our global distribution network and ongoing product development, which we expect will result in losses in our fiscal year 2008 and
potentially in future periods. These expenditures include costs associated with hiring additional personnel, performing clinical trials, continuing our research and
development relating to our products under development, seeking regulatory approvals and, if we receive these approvals, commencing commercial manufacturing
and marketing. The amount of these expenditures is difficult to forecast accurately, and cost overruns may occur. We also expect that we will need to make
significant expenditures to begin to market and manufacture in commercial quantities our Impella products, our IAB, the AbioCor and any other new products for
which we may receive regulatory approvals or clearances in the future.

If we fail to obtain and maintain necessary governmental approvals for our products and indications, we may be unable to market and sell our products in
certain jurisdictions.

Medical devices such as ours are extensively regulated by the FDA in the United States and by other federal, state, local and foreign authorities. Governmental
regulations relate to the testing, development, manufacturing, labeling, design, sale, promotion, distribution, importing, exporting and shipping of our products. In
the United States, before we can market a new medical device, or a new use of, or claim for, or significant modification to, an existing product, we must generally
first receive either a premarket approval, or PMA, or 510(k) clearance from the FDA. Both of these processes can be expensive and lengthy and entail significant
expenses. The FDA�s 510(k) clearance process usually takes from three to 12 months, but it can last longer. The process of obtaining premarket approval is much
more costly and uncertain than the 510(k) clearance process. It generally takes from one to three years, or even longer, from the time the PMA application is
submitted to the FDA. We cannot assure you that any regulatory clearances or approvals, either foreign or domestic, will be granted on a timely basis, if at all. If
we are unable to obtain regulatory approvals or clearances for use of our products under development, or if the patient populations for which they are approved are
not sufficiently broad, the commercial success of these products could be limited. The FDA may also limit the claims that we can make about our products.

For example, we plan to pursue premarket approval for each of our Impella 2.5 and Impella 5.0, and we are seeking 510(k) clearance of our Impella 2.5. In
addition, we have submitted for premarket approval of our iPulse console.

We cannot assure you that we will receive any of these approvals or clearances. For example, in response to our 510(k) submission for the Impella 2.5 for short
duration use, the FDA recently responded with a letter indicating that the FDA believes that the technological characteristics of the Impella 2.5 raise new questions
of safety and effectiveness that are not addressed by the predicate devices we identified in our 510(k) submission. The FDA stated it is unaware of a predicate
device raising the same questions and asked us to identify a predicate device that does so. We intend to respond to the FDA�s letter by submitting additional data
attempting to demonstrate that the device does not raise a new question of safety or effectiveness, and we believe that our response will be successful in answering
the FDA�s concerns. We may also amend our 510(k) submission to identify additional predicate devices. If we succeed in addressing these concerns, we expect to
receive additional questions and requests for information from the FDA as we pursue 510(k) clearance of the Impella 2.5. If the FDA deems any of our responses
unsatisfactory, we will not receive 510(k) clearance. We cannot assure you that we will successfully address the FDA�s concerns or obtain 510(k) clearance for the
Impella 2.5 on a timely basis, or at all. If we do not receive 510(k) clearance for our Impella 2.5 device, then based on our plan to continue with our PMA strategy,
the commercial launch of the Impella 2.5 in the U.S. could take an additional 12 months or more. If we do not receive FDA approval or clearance for one or more
of our products, we will be unable to market and sell those products in the U.S., which would have a material adverse effect on our operations and prospects.

We intend to market our new products in international markets, including the European Union and Japan. Approval processes differ among those jurisdictions, and
approval in the U.S. or any other single jurisdiction does not guarantee approval in any other jurisdiction. Obtaining foreign approvals could involve significant
delays, difficulties and costs for us and could require additional clinical trials.
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Our current and planned clinical trials may not begin on time, or at all, and may not be completed on schedule, or at all.

In order to obtain premarket approval and, in some cases, a 510(k) clearance, we may be required to conduct well-controlled clinical trials designed to test the
safety and effectiveness of the product. In order to conduct clinical studies, we must generally receive an investigational device exemption, or IDE, for each device
from the FDA. An IDE allows us to use an investigational device in a clinical trial to collect data on safety and effectiveness that will support an application for
premarket approval or 510(k) clearance from FDA. We have received IDE approval and are conducting pilot clinical trials for each of our Impella 2.5 and Impella
5.0.

Conducting clinical trials is a long, expensive and uncertain process that is subject to delays and failure at any stage. Clinical trials can take months or years to
complete. The commencement or completion of any of our clinical trials may be delayed or halted for numerous reasons, including:

� the FDA may not approve a clinical trial protocol or a clinical trial, or may place a clinical trial on hold;

� subjects may not enroll in clinical trials at the rate we expect and/or subjects may not be followed-up on at the rate we expect;

� subjects may experience adverse side effects or events related or unrelated to our products;

� third-party clinical investigators may not perform our clinical trials on our anticipated schedule or consistent with the clinical trial protocol and good
clinical practices, or other third-party organizations may not perform data collection and analysis in a timely or accurate manner;

� the interim results of any of our clinical trials may be inconclusive or negative;

� regulatory inspections of our clinical trials or manufacturing facilities may require us to undertake corrective action or suspend or terminate our
clinical trials if investigators find us not to be in compliance with regulatory requirements;

� our manufacturing process may not produce finished products that conform to design and performance specifications; or

� governmental regulations or administrative actions may change and impose new requirements.
The results of pre-clinical studies do not necessarily predict future clinical trial results, and predecessor clinical trial results may not be repeated in subsequent
clinical trials. A number of companies in the medical industry have suffered delays, cost overruns and project terminations despite achieving promising results in
pre-clinical testing or early clinical testing. In addition, the data obtained from clinical trials may be inadequate to support approval or clearance of a submission.
The FDA may disagree with our interpretation of the data from our clinical trials, or may find the clinical trial design, conduct or results inadequate to demonstrate
the safety and effectiveness of the product candidate. The FDA may also require us to conduct additional pre-clinical studies or clinical trials, which could further
delay approval of our products. If we are unable to receive FDA approval of an IDE to conduct clinical trials or the trials are halted by the FDA or others, or if we
are unsuccessful in receiving FDA approval of a product candidate, we would not be able to sell or promote the product candidate in the U.S., which could
seriously harm our business. Moreover, we face similar risks in each other jurisdiction in which we sell or propose to sell our products.

If we make modifications to a product, whether in response to results of clinical testing or otherwise, we could be required to start our clinical trials over, which
could cause serious delays that would adversely affect our results of operations. Even modest changes to certain components of our products could result in
months or years of additional clinical trials.

If we do not effectively manage our growth, we may be unable to successfully develop, market and sell our products.

Our future revenue and operating results will depend on our ability to manage the anticipated growth of our business. Since 2004, we have experienced significant
growth in the scope of our operations and the number of our employees, including the addition of our operations in Germany and France. This growth has placed
significant demands on our management, as well as our financial and operations resources. In order to achieve our business objectives, we will need to continue to
grow. However, continued growth presents numerous challenges, including:
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� expanding manufacturing capacity, maintaining quality and increasing production;

� expansion of foreign regulatory compliance capabilities;
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� implementing appropriate operational and financial systems and controls;

� identifying, attracting and retaining qualified personnel, particularly experienced clinical staff; and

� training, managing and supervising our personnel worldwide.
Any failure to manage our growth effectively could impede our ability to successfully develop, market and sell our products, which could seriously harm our
business.

The markets for most of our products and products under development are unproven, and we may be unable to successfully commercialize our products.

Our products and products under development may not enjoy commercial acceptance or success, which could adversely affect our business and results of
operations. We need to create markets for our Impella micro heart pumps, AB5000, IAB, iPulse console, AbioCor, AbioCor II and other new products, including
achieving market acceptance among physicians, medical centers, patients and third-party payers. In particular, we need to gain acceptance of our Impella products
among interventional cardiologists, who have not previously been users of our other devices. The obstacles we will face in trying to create successful commercial
markets for our products include:

� limitations inherent in first-generation devices, and the potential failure to develop successive improvements, including increases in service life;

� the introduction by other companies of new treatments, products and technologies that compete with our products;

� the timing and amount of reimbursement for these products, if any, by third-party payers;

� the potential reluctance of clinicians to obtain adequate training to use our products;

� the lifestyle limitations that patients will have to accept for our AbioCor and AbioCor II products; and

� the potential reluctance of physicians, patients and society as a whole to accept medical devices that replace or assist the heart or the finite life and
risk of mechanical failure inherent in such devices.

The commercial success of our products will require acceptance by surgeons and interventional cardiologists, a limited number of whom have significant
influence over medical device selection and purchasing decisions.

We may achieve our business objectives only if our products are accepted and recommended by leading cardiovascular surgeons and interventional cardiologists,
whose decisions are likely to be based on a determination by these clinicians that our products are safe and cost-effective and represent acceptable methods of
treatment. Although we have developed relationships with leading cardiac surgeons, the commercial success of our Impella products, IAB and iPulse console will
require that we also develop relationships with leading interventional cardiologists in cath labs, where we do not yet have a significant presence. We cannot assure
you that we can maintain our existing relationships and arrangements or that we can establish new relationships in support of our products. If cardiovascular
surgeons and interventional cardiologists do not consider our products to be adequate for the treatment of our target cardiac patient population or if a sufficient
number of these clinicians recommend and use competing products, it would seriously harm our business.

The training required for clinicians to use our products could reduce the market acceptance of our products and reduce our revenue.

Clinicians must be trained to use our products proficiently. It is critical to the success of our sales efforts that we ensure that there are a sufficient number of
clinicians familiar with, trained on and proficient in the use of our products. Convincing clinicians to dedicate the time and energy necessary to obtain adequate
training in the use of our products is challenging, and we may not be successful in these efforts. If clinicians are not properly trained, they may misuse or
ineffectively use our products. Any improper use of our products may result in unsatisfactory outcomes, patient injury, negative publicity or lawsuits against us,
any of which could harm our reputation and product sales. Furthermore, our inability to educate and train clinicians to use our products may lead to inadequate
demand for our products.
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Our products are subject to extensive regulatory requirements, including continuing regulatory review, which could affect the manufacturing and marketing
of our products.

The FDA and other regulatory agencies continue to review products even after they have received initial approval. If and when the FDA or another regulatory
agency clears or approves our products under development, the manufacture and marketing of these products will be
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subject to continuing regulation, including compliance with the FDA�s adverse event reporting requirements, prohibitions on promoting a product for unapproved
uses, and Quality System Regulation, or QSR, requirements, which obligate manufacturers, including third-party and contract manufacturers, to adhere to stringent
design, testing, control, documentation and other quality assurance procedures during the design and manufacture of a device.

Any modification to an FDA-cleared device that could significantly affect its safety or effectiveness, or that would constitute a major change in its intended use,
requires a new 510(k) clearance or PMA approval. The FDA requires each manufacturer to make this determination in the first instance, but the FDA may review
any such decision. Modifications of this type are common with new products, and we anticipate that the first generation of each of our products will undergo a
number of changes, refinements and improvements over time. For example, the current configuration of the AbioCor�s thoracic unit, or �replacement heart,� is sized
for patients with relatively large chest cavities, and we anticipate that we will need to obtain regulatory approval of thoracic units of other sizes, such as the
AbioCor II. If the FDA requires us to seek clearance or approval for modification of a previously cleared product for which we have concluded that new
clearances or approvals are unnecessary, we may be required to cease marketing or to recall the modified product until we obtain clearance or approval, and we
may be subject to significant regulatory fines or penalties, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and competitive position. We also
cannot assure you that we will be successful in obtaining clearances or approvals for our modifications, if required. We and our third-party suppliers of product
components are also subject to inspection and market surveillance by the FDA and other regulatory agencies for QSR and other requirements, the interpretation of
which can change. Compliance with QSR and similar legal requirements can be difficult and expensive. Enforcement actions resulting from failure to comply with
government requirements could result in fines, suspensions of approvals or clearances, recalls or seizure of products, operating restrictions or shutdown, and
criminal prosecutions, and could adversely affect the manufacture and marketing of our products. The FDA or another regulatory agency could withdraw a
previously approved product from the market upon receipt of newly discovered information, including a failure to comply with regulatory requirements, the
occurrence of unanticipated problems with products following approval, or other reasons, which could adversely affect our operating results.

Even after receiving regulatory clearance or approval, our products may be subject to product recalls, which may harm our reputation and divert our
managerial and financial resources.

The FDA and similar governmental authorities in other countries have the authority to order mandatory recall of our products or order their removal from the
market if the governmental entity finds that our products might cause adverse health consequences or death. A government-mandated or voluntary recall by us
could occur as a result of component failures, manufacturing errors or design defects, including labeling defects. We have in the past initiated voluntary recalls of
some of our products, and we could do so in the future. Any recall of our products may harm our reputation with customers and divert managerial and financial
resources.

Our principal products and current primary source of revenues, the AB5000 and BVS 5000, are vulnerable to competitive pressures.

To date, we have derived most of our product revenues from sales of the AB5000 and BVS 5000. We believe that we will continue to rely heavily on these
products for at least the next several years until we obtain U.S. regulatory approval for new products, including our Impella products and iPulse console.
Moreover, we expect to rely increasingly on sales of the AB5000, as sales of the BVS 5000 have been declining. If another company were to introduce new
treatments, products or technologies that compete with our products, add new features to its existing products or reduce its prices to make its products more
financially attractive to customers, revenue from our AB5000 and BVS 5000 could decline. For example, in the event of the expansion of technologies that allow
heart surgical procedures to be performed without stopping the heart, a reduction in the market for these products could result. In addition, variations in the
quantity and timing of sales of our AB5000 consoles have a disproportionate effect on our revenues, because the price of the console is substantially greater than
the price of our disposable blood pumps. If we cannot maintain and increase our disposable revenues from our AB5000 and BVS 5000, our overall business and
financial condition could be adversely affected.

If we are unable to develop additional, high-quality manufacturing capacity, our growth may be limited and our business could be seriously harmed.

To be successful, we believe we will need to increase our manufacturing capacity. We do not have experience in manufacturing our Impella products in the
commercial quantities that might be required if we receive FDA approval of those products, nor do we have experience manufacturing our AB5000, IAB and
AbioCor in large quantities. We may encounter difficulties in scaling up manufacturing of our products, including problems related to product yields, quality
control and assurance, component and service availability, adequacy of control policies and procedures, and lack of skilled personnel. If we cannot hire, train and
retain enough experienced and capable scientific and technical workers, we may not be able to manufacture sufficient quantities of our current or future products at
an acceptable cost and on time, which could limit market acceptance of our products or otherwise damage our business.

19

Edgar Filing: ABIOMED INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 26



Table of Contents

Each of our products is manufactured in a single location, and any significant disruption in production could impair our ability to deliver our products.

We manufacture our Impella micro heart pumps at our facility in Aachen, Germany, and we manufacture our other products at our facility in Danvers,
Massachusetts. Events such as fire, flood, power loss or other disasters could prevent us from manufacturing our products in compliance with applicable FDA and
other regulatory requirements, which could result in significant delays before we restore production or commence production at another site. These delays may
result in lost sales. Our insurance may not be adequate to cover our losses resulting from disasters or other business interruptions. Any significant disruption in the
manufacturing of our products could seriously harm our business and results of operations.

Any failure to achieve and maintain the high manufacturing standards that our products require may seriously harm our business.

Our products require precise, high-quality manufacturing. Achieving precision and quality control requires skill and diligence by our personnel. Our failure to
achieve and maintain these high manufacturing standards, including the incidence of manufacturing errors, design defects or component failures, could result in
patient injury or death, product recalls or withdrawals, delays or failures in product testing or delivery, cost overruns or other problems that could seriously hurt
our business. We have from time to time voluntarily recalled certain products. Despite our very high manufacturing standards, we cannot completely eliminate the
risk of errors, defects or failures. If we are unable to manufacture the AB5000, BVS 5000, Impella products and our iPulse consoles in accordance with necessary
quality standards, or if we are unable to procure additional high-quality manufacturing facilities, our business and results of operations may be negatively affected.

Our AbioCor products involve even greater manufacturing complexities than our current commercial products. Our AbioCor products must be significantly more
durable and meet different standards, which may be more difficult to achieve, than those that apply to our current products. If we are unable to manufacture our
AbioCor products or other future products on a timely basis at acceptable quality and cost, or if we experience unanticipated technological problems or delays in
production, our business will suffer.

We depend on third-party reimbursement to our customers for market acceptance of our products. If third-party payers fail to provide appropriate levels of
reimbursement for purchase and use of our products, our sales and profitability would be adversely affected.

Sales of medical devices largely depend on the reimbursement of patients� medical expenses by government health care programs and private health insurers. The
cost of our AB5000 systems, BVS 5000 systems, Impella micro heart pumps, and iPulse consoles is substantial, and the cost of implanting the AbioCor in a
patient will also be substantial. Without the financial support of government reimbursement or third-party insurers� payments for patient care, the market for our
products will be limited. Medical products and devices incorporating new technologies are closely examined by governments and private insurers to determine
whether the products and devices will be covered by reimbursement, and if so, the level of reimbursement which may apply. With regard to the AbioCor, there is a
Medicare noncoverage decision for artificial hearts that would prevent Medicare coverage of the services related to the implantation of that device, and that may
deter coverage by private insurers. We cannot be sure that third-party payers will cover and/or adequately reimburse sales of our Impella products, iPulse console,
AbioCor or other products under development, to enable us to sell them at profitable prices.

In addition, third-party payers are increasingly requiring evidence that medical devices are cost-effective. If we are unable to meet the standards of a third-party
payer, that payer may not reimburse the use of our products, which could reduce sales of our products to heath care providers who depend upon reimbursement for
payment. We also cannot be sure that third-party payers will continue the current level of reimbursement to physicians and medical centers for use of our AB5000,
BVS 5000, Impella products and iPulse consoles. Any reduction in the amount of this reimbursement could harm our business.

Changes in health care reimbursement systems in the United States and abroad could reduce our revenues and profitability.

The federal government has considered ways to change, and has changed, the manner in which healthcare services are provided and paid for in the U.S.
Occasionally, Congress passes laws that impact reimbursement for health care services, including reimbursement to hospitals and physicians. States may also
enact legislation that impacts Medicaid payments to hospitals and physicians. In addition, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, the federal agency
responsible for administering the Medicare program, establishes payment levels for hospitals and physicians on an annual basis, which can increase or decrease
payment to such entities. Future legislative and regulatory initiatives could be introduced that adversely affect demand for our products and have a material
adverse impact on our revenues. Our business and results of operations could therefore be adversely affected by future healthcare reforms.

Internationally, medical reimbursement systems vary significantly from country to country, with some countries limiting medical centers� spending through fixed
budgets, regardless of levels of patient treatment, and other countries requiring application for, and approval of, government or third-party reimbursement. Even if
we succeed in bringing our new products to market, uncertainties regarding future
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healthcare policy, legislation and regulation, as well as private market practices, could affect our ability to sell our products in commercially acceptable quantities
at profitable prices.

We must comply with healthcare �fraud and abuse� laws, and we could face substantial penalties for non-compliance and be excluded from government
healthcare programs, which would adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business is regulated by laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse, including:

� the federal Anti-Kickback Statute, which prohibits persons from knowingly and willfully soliciting, offering, receiving or providing remuneration,
directly or indirectly, in cash or in kind, in exchange for or to induce either the referral of an individual for, or the furnishing, recommending, or
arranging for, a good or service for which payment may be made under a federal healthcare program such as Medicare and Medicaid; and

� state law equivalents to the Anti-Kickback Statute, which may not be limited to government-reimbursed items.
We have various arrangements with customers that may implicate these laws. For example, some physicians who use our products also provide medical advisory
and other consulting and personal services. Some of these physician arrangements may not meet Anti-Kickback Statute safe harbor requirements, which may result
in increased scrutiny by government authorities having responsibility for enforcing these laws. Additionally, we do not maintain a formal compliance plan
concerning interactions with healthcare professionals nor have we formally adopted the recommendations issued by the Office of Inspector General of the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, or OIG. The OIG may interpret the absence of such formal plan negatively in the case of an enforcement action, which
could result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

If our operations are found to be in violation of any of these or similar laws or regulations, we or our officers may face significant civil and criminal penalties,
damages, fines, imprisonment and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Any violations may lead to curtailment or restructuring of our operations,
which could adversely affect our ability to operate our business and our financial results. The risk of our being found in violation of these laws is increased by the
fact that many of these laws are open to a variety of interpretations. Any action against us for violation of these laws, even if we successfully defend against it,
could cause us to incur significant legal expenses, divert our management�s attention from the operation of our business and damage our reputation. If enforcement
action were to occur, our reputation and our business and financial condition may be harmed, even if we were to prevail or settle the action. Similarly, if the
physicians or other providers or entities with whom we do business are found not to comply with applicable laws, they may be subject to sanctions, which could
also have a negative impact on our business.

If we cannot attract and retain the management, scientific, sales and other personnel we need, we will not be successful.

We depend heavily on the contributions of the principal members of our business, financial, technical, sales and support, regulatory and clinical, operating and
administrative management and staff, many of whom would be difficult to replace. For example, many of the members of our clinical staff are registered nurses
with experience in the surgery suite or cath lab, only a limited number of whom seek employment with a company like ours. Competition for skilled and
experienced management, scientific, clinical and sales personnel in the medical devices industry is intense. If we lose the services of any of the principal members
of our management and staff, or if we are unable to attract and retain qualified personnel in the future, especially scientific and sales personnel, our business could
be adversely affected.

If our suppliers cannot provide the components we require, our ability to manufacture our products could be harmed.

We rely on third-party suppliers to provide us with some components used in our existing products and products under development. For example, we outsource
the manufacturing of all of our consoles, other than final assembly and testing. Relying on third-party suppliers makes us vulnerable to component part failures
and to interruptions in supply, either of which could impair our ability to conduct clinical tests or to ship our products to our customers on a timely basis. Using
third-party vendors makes it difficult and sometimes impossible for us to test fully certain components, such as components on circuit boards, maintain quality
control, manage inventory and production schedules, and control production costs. Manufacturers of our product components may be required to comply with the
FDA or other regulatory manufacturing regulations and to satisfy regulatory inspections in connection with the manufacture of the components. Any failure by a
supplier to comply with applicable requirements could lead to a disruption in supply. Vendor lead times to supply us with ordered components vary significantly
and can exceed six months or more. Both now and as we expand our manufacturing capacity, we cannot be sure that our suppliers will furnish us with required
components when we need them. These factors could make it more difficult for us to effectively and efficiently manufacture our products, and could adversely
impact our results of operations.

Some of our suppliers may be the only source for a particular component, which makes us vulnerable to significant cost increases. Sole-source vendors may decide
to limit or eliminate sales of certain components to the medical industry due to product liability or other concerns, and we might not be able to find a suitable
replacement for those products. Our inventory may run out before we find alternative suppliers, and we might be forced to purchase substantial inventory, if
available, to last until we qualify an alternate supplier. If we cannot obtain a
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necessary component, we may need to find, test and obtain regulatory approval or clearance for a replacement component, produce the component ourselves or
redesign the related product, which would cause significant delay and could increase our manufacturing costs. Any of these events could adversely impact our
results of operations.

We may not be successful in expanding our direct sales activities into international markets.

We are seeking to expand our international sales of the AB5000, BVS 5000 and Impella circulatory assist systems, as well as our iPulse console, by recruiting
direct sales and support teams in Germany and France. Our international operations will be subject to a number of risks, which may vary from the risks we
experience in the U.S., including:

� the need to obtain regulatory approvals in foreign countries before our products may be sold or used;

� the need to procure reimbursement for our products in each foreign market;

� the generally lower level of reimbursement available in foreign markets relative to the U.S.;

� longer sales cycles;

� limited protection of intellectual property rights;

� difficulty in collecting accounts receivable;

� fluctuations in the values of foreign currencies; and

� political and economic instability.
If we are unable to effectively expand our sales activities in international markets, our results of operations could be negatively impacted.

We intend to expand our reliance on distributors in some international markets, and poor performance by a distributor could reduce our sales and harm our
business.

We rely on distributors to market and sell our products in parts of Europe, Asia, South America and Australia. Many of these distributors have the exclusive right
to distribute our products in their territory. We may hire distributors to market our products in additional international markets. Our success in these markets will
depend almost entirely upon the efforts of our distributors, over whom we have little or no control. If a distributor does not market and sell our products
aggressively, we could lose sales and impair our ability to compete in that market.

Our operating results may fluctuate unpredictably.

Historically, our annual and quarterly operating results have fluctuated widely, and we expect these fluctuations to continue. Among the factors that may cause our
operating results to fluctuate are:

� the timing of customer orders and deliveries, particularly for our consoles, which are substantially more expensive than our disposable products;

� competitive changes, such as price changes or new product introductions that we or our competitors may make;
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� the timing of regulatory actions, such as product approvals or recalls;

� costs we incur developing and testing our Impella micro heart pumps, IAB, iPulse console, AbioCor, AbioCor II and other new products or product
enhancements;

� costs we incur in anticipation of future sales, such as inventory purchases, expansion of manufacturing facilities, or establishment of international
sales offices;

� economic conditions in the health care industry; and

� efforts by governments, insurance companies and others to contain health care costs, including changes to reimbursement policies.
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We believe that period-to-period comparisons of our historical results are not necessarily meaningful, and investors should not rely on them as an indication of our
future performance. To the extent we experience the factors described above, our future operating results may not meet the expectations of securities analysts or
investors from time to time, which may cause the market price of our common stock to decline.

We may be unable to obtain any benefit from our net operating loss carryforwards and research and experimentation credit carryforwards.

At March 31, 2007, we had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $79.2 million and $36.9 million, respectively, which begin to
expire in fiscal 2008. At March 31, 2007, we also had foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $20.6 million that can be carried forward
indefinitely. Additionally, at March 31, 2007, we had federal and state research and experimentation credit carryforwards of approximately $6.3 million and $4.3
million, respectively, which begin to expire in fiscal 2008. Ownership changes, as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, may have limited the
amount of net operating loss carryforwards and research and experimentation credit carryforwards that we can use each year to offset future taxable income and
taxes payable. Subsequent ownership changes could impose additional limitations. We have not done a complete analysis to determine whether changes in the
composition of our stockholders, including as a result of our acquisition of Impella or our recent public offering, have resulted or will result in an ownership
change for purposes of Section 382. We cannot assure you that we will obtain any benefit from any of our net operating loss carryforwards and research and
experimentation credit carryforwards.

Our future success depends in part on the development of new circulatory assist products, and our development efforts may not be successful.

We are devoting our major research and development and regulatory efforts, and significant financial resources, to the development of our Impella micro heart
pumps, iPulse console, AbioCor, AbioCor II and product extensions of existing commercial products and new products. The development of new products and
product extensions presents enormous challenges in a variety of areas, many or all of which we may have difficulty in overcoming, including blood compatible
surfaces, blood compatible flow, manufacturing techniques, pumping mechanisms, physiological control, energy transfer, anatomical fit and surgical techniques.
We may be unable to overcome all of these challenges, which could adversely affect our results of operations and prospects.

We may not have sufficient funds to develop and commercialize our new products.

The development, manufacture and sale of any medical device in the United States and abroad is very expensive. We cannot be sure that we will have the
necessary funds to develop and commercialize our new products, or that additional funds will be available on commercially acceptable terms, if at all. If we are
unable to obtain the necessary funding to develop and commercialize our products, our business may be adversely affected.

We own patents, trademarks, trade secrets, copyrights and other intellectual property and know-how that we believe gives us a competitive advantage. If we
cannot protect our intellectual property and develop or otherwise acquire additional intellectual property, competition could force us to lower our prices, which
could hurt our profitability.

Our intellectual property rights are and will continue to be a critical component of our success. A substantial portion of our intellectual property rights relating to
the AB5000, BVS 5000, Impella products, AbioCor, AbioCor II and other products under development is in the form of trade secrets, rather than patents. Unlike
patents, trade secrets are only recognized under applicable law if they are kept secret by restricting their disclosure to third parties. We protect our trade secrets and
proprietary knowledge in part through confidentiality agreements with employees, consultants and other parties. However, certain consultants and third parties
with whom we have business relationships, and to whom in some cases we have disclosed trade secrets and other proprietary knowledge, may also provide
services to other parties in the medical device industry, including companies, universities and research organizations that are developing competing products. In
addition, some of our former employees who were exposed to certain of our trade secrets and other proprietary knowledge in the course of their employment may
seek employment with, and become employed by, our competitors. We cannot assure you that consultants, employees, and other third parties with whom we have
entered into confidentiality agreements will not breach the terms of such agreements by improperly using or disclosing our trade secrets or other proprietary
knowledge, that we will have adequate remedies for any such breach, or that our trade secrets will not become known to or be independently developed by our
competitors. The loss of trade secret protection for technologies or know-how relating to the AB5000, BVS 5000, Impella products, AbioCor or AbioCor II could
adversely affect our business and our prospects.

Our business position also depends in part on our ability to maintain and defend our existing patents and obtain, maintain, and defend additional patents and other
intellectual property rights. We intend to seek additional patents, but our pending and future patent applications may not be approved, may not give us a
competitive advantage, and could be challenged by others, or, if issued, could be deemed invalid or unenforceable. Patent prosecution, related proceedings, and
litigation in the U.S. and in other countries may be expensive, time consuming
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and ultimately unsuccessful. In addition, patents issued by foreign countries may afford less protection than is available under U.S. patent law, and may not
adequately protect our proprietary information. Our competitors may independently develop proprietary technologies and processes that are the same as or
substantially equivalent to ours, or design around our patents. Finally, the expiration of patents on which we rely for protection of key products could diminish our
competitive advantage and adversely affect our business and our prospects.

The risk of product liability claims will increase as we sell more products that are intended to support a patient until the end of life. The finite life of our products,
as well as complications associated with their use, could give rise to product liability claims whether or not the products have extended or improved the quality of
a patient�s life. For example, the AbioCor will have a finite life and could cause unintended complications to other organs and may not be able to support all
patients successfully. Its malfunction could give rise to product liability claims whether or not it has extended or improved the quality of the patient�s life. If we
have to pay product liability claims in excess of our insurance coverage, our financial condition will be adversely affected.

Off-label use of our products may result in injuries that lead to product liability suits, which could be costly to our business.

The use of our products outside the indications cleared for use, or �off-label use,� may increase the risk of injury to patients. Clinicians may use our products for
off-label uses, as the FDA does not restrict or regulate a clinician�s choice of treatment within the practice of medicine. Off-label use of our products may increase
the risk of product liability claims. Product liability claims are expensive to defend and could divert our management�s attention and result in substantial damage
awards against us.

If the FDA or another regulatory agency determines that we have promoted off-label use of our products, we may be subject to various penalties, including
civil or criminal penalties.

The FDA and other regulatory agencies actively enforce regulations prohibiting promotion of off-label uses and the promotion of products for which marketing
clearance has not been obtained. If the FDA or another regulatory agency determines that our promotional materials or training constitutes promotion of an
unapproved use, it could request that we modify our training or promotional materials or subject us to regulatory enforcement actions, including the issuance of a
warning letter, injunction, seizure, civil fine and criminal penalties. Although our policy is to refrain from statements that could be considered off-label promotion
of our products, the FDA or another regulatory agency could disagree and conclude that we have engaged in off-label promotion.

Quality problems can result in substantial costs and write-downs.

Government regulations require us to track materials used in the manufacture of our products, so that any problem identified in one product can be traced to other
products that may have the same problem. An identified quality problem may require reworking or scrapping related inventory and recalling previous shipments.
Because a malfunction in our products can be life-threatening, we may be required to recall and replace, free of charge, products already in the marketplace. Any
quality problem could cause us to incur significant expenses, lead to significant write-offs, injure our reputation and harm our business and financial results.

Future milestone payments relating to our acquisition of Impella could harm our financial position or result in dilution.

We may be required to make additional contingent payments of up to $11.2 million under the terms of our acquisition of Impella, based on our future stock price
performance and milestones related to FDA approval of Impella�s products. If we pay any milestone payment in shares of our common stock, our stockholders may
experience dilution. If we use cash to make any such payment, our financial resources will be diminished and we may be unable to pursue other activities, such as
research and development, the expansion of our sales force or the acquisition of other new products.

If we fail to compete successfully against our existing or potential competitors, our product sales or operating results may be harmed.

Competition from other companies offering circulatory care products is intense and subject to rapid technological change and evolving industry requirements and
standards. We compete with companies that have substantially greater or broader financial, product development, sales and marketing resources and experience
than we do. These competitors may develop superior products or products of similar quality at the same or lower prices. Moreover, improvements in current or
new technologies may make them technically equivalent or superior to our products in addition to providing cost or other advantages.

Our customers frequently have limited budgets. As a result, our products compete against a broad range of medical devices and other therapies for these limited
funds. Our success will depend in large part upon our ability to enhance our existing products, to develop new products to meet regulatory and customer
requirements, and to achieve market acceptance. We believe that important competitive factors with respect to the development and commercialization of our
products include the relative speed with which we can develop products, establish
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clinical utility, complete clinical trials and regulatory approval processes, obtain reimbursement, and supply commercial quantities of the product to the market.

Our AB5000 and BVS 5000 systems compete with a temporary cardiac assist device from Thoratec Corporation, which is approved for post-cardiotomy support.
In addition, the AB5000 and BVS 5000 compete with other blood pumps that are used in medical centers for a variety of applications, such as intra-aortic balloon
pumps, including those offered by Datascope and Arrow International, and centrifugal pumps. Levitronix is conducting clinical trials in the U.S. for a device that
may compete with our current heart assist products in some applications. Levitronix has licensed this product to Thoratec Corporation for distribution in the U.S.
The FDA recently approved a product designed by CardiacAssist, Inc. that may compete with our Impella products. Approval by the FDA of products that
compete directly with our products would increase competitive pricing and other pressures.

Advances in medical technology, biotechnology and pharmaceuticals may reduce the size of the potential markets for our products or render those products
obsolete. We are aware of other heart replacement device research efforts in the U.S., Canada, Europe and Japan. In October 2004, the FDA approved Syncardia
Systems� CardioWest Total Artificial Heart for use as a bridge to transplantation in cardiac transplant-eligible candidates at risk of imminent death from
non-reversible biventricular failure. In addition, there are a number of companies�including Thoratec Corporation, Jarvik Heart, Heartware, World Heart
Corporation, MicroMed Technology, Ventracor and several early-stage companies�that are developing permanent heart assist products, including implantable left
ventricular assist devices and miniaturized rotary ventricular assist devices.

If we acquire other companies or businesses, we will be subject to risks that could hurt our business.

We may pursue acquisitions to obtain complementary businesses, products or technologies. Any such acquisition may not produce the revenues, earnings or
business synergies that we anticipate, and an acquired business, product or technology might not perform as we expect. Our management could spend a significant
amount of time, effort and money in identifying, pursuing and completing the acquisition. If we complete an acquisition, we may encounter significant difficulties
and incur substantial expenses in integrating the operations and personnel of the acquired company into our operations while striving to preserve the goodwill of
the acquired company. In particular, we may lose the services of key employees of the acquired company, and we may make changes in management that impair
the acquired company�s relationships with employees and customers.

Any of these outcomes could prevent us from realizing the anticipated benefits of an acquisition. To pay for an acquisition, we might use stock or cash.
Alternatively, we might borrow money from a bank or other lender. If we use our stock, our stockholders would experience dilution of their ownership interests. If
we use cash or debt financing, our financial liquidity would be reduced. We may be required to capitalize a significant amount of intangibles, including goodwill,
which may lead to significant amortization charges. In addition, we may incur significant, one-time write-offs and amortization charges, such as our $13.3 million
write-off of in-process research and development expenses in connection with the Impella acquisition in fiscal 2006. These amortization charges and write-offs
could decrease our future earnings or increase our future losses.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates could result in declines in our reported sales and earnings.

Because some of our international sales are denominated in local currencies and not in U.S. dollars, our reported sales and earnings are subject to fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates, primarily the Euro. The functional currency of Abiomed Europe is the Euro. At present, we do not hedge our exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations. As a result, sales occurring in the future that are denominated in foreign currencies may be translated into U.S. dollars at less favorable rates,
resulting in reduced revenues and earnings.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

The market price of our common stock is volatile.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated widely and may continue to do so. For example, from March 31, 2006 to March 31, 2007 the price of our
stock ranged from a high of $16.19 per share to a low of $11.48 per share. Many factors could cause the market price of our common stock to rise and fall. Some
of these factors are:

� variations in our quarterly results of operations;

� the status of regulatory approvals for our products;

� the introduction of new products by us or our competitors;
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� changes in accounting principles;

� changes in health care policy or third-party reimbursement practices;

� changes in estimates of our performance or recommendations by securities analysts;

� the hiring or departure of key personnel;

� future sales of shares of common stock in the public market; and

� market conditions in the industry and the economy as a whole.
In addition, the stock market in general and the market for shares of medical device companies in particular have experienced extreme price and volume
fluctuations in recent years. These fluctuations are often unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. These broad market fluctuations may
adversely affect the market price of our common stock. When the market price of a company�s stock drops significantly, stockholders often institute securities class
action litigation against that company. Any litigation against us could cause us to incur substantial costs, divert the time and attention of our management and other
resources, or otherwise harm our business.

The sale of additional shares of our common stock, or the exercise of outstanding options and warrants to purchase our common stock, could dilute our
stockholders� ownership interest.

We have issued a substantial number of options and warrants to acquire our common stock, and we expect to continue to issue options to our employees and
others. If all outstanding stock options and warrants were exercised, our stockholders would suffer dilution of their ownership interest. In addition, in connection
with our acquisition of Impella CardioSystems AG in 2005, we may be obligated to make certain milestone payments. These payments may be made in stock,
which would also result in a dilution of our stockholders� ownership interest.

The sale of material amounts of common stock could encourage short sales by third parties and depress the price of our common stock. As a result, our
stockholders may lose all or part of their investment.

The downward pressure on our stock price caused by the sale of a significant number of shares of our common stock, or the perception that such sales could occur
by any of our significant stockholders could cause our stock price to decline, thus allowing short sellers of our stock an opportunity to take advantage of any
decrease in the value of our stock. The presence of short sellers in our common stock may further depress the price of our common stock.

Our rights distribution, certificate of incorporation and Delaware law could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us and may prevent our
stockholders from realizing a premium on our stock.

Our rights distribution and provisions of our certificate of incorporation and of the Delaware General Corporation Law may make it more difficult for a third party
to acquire us, even if doing so would allow our stockholders to receive a premium over the prevailing market price of our stock. Our rights distribution and those
provisions of our certificate of incorporation and Delaware law are intended to encourage potential acquirers to negotiate with us and allow our Board of Directors
the opportunity to consider alternative proposals in the interest of maximizing stockholder value. However, such provisions may also discourage acquisition
proposals or delay or prevent a change in control, which could negatively affect our stock price.

The market value of our common stock could vary significantly, based on market perceptions of the status of our development efforts.

The perception of securities analysts regarding our product development efforts could significantly affect our stock price. As a result, the market price of our
common stock has and could in the future change substantially when we or our competitors make product announcements. Many factors affecting our stock price
are industry related and beyond our control.

We have not paid and do not expect to pay dividends, and any return on our stockholders� investment will likely be limited to the value of our common stock.

We have never paid dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. The payment of
dividends on our common stock will depend on our earnings, financial condition and other business and economic
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factors affecting us at such time as our board of directors may consider relevant. If we do not pay dividends, our common stock may be less valuable because a
return on our stockholders� investment will only occur if our stock price appreciates.

ITEM 1B.    UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2.    PROPERTIES
Our headquarters are in an industrial office park located 22 miles north of Boston. This facility, located at 22 Cherry Hill Drive in Danvers, Massachusetts,
consists of approximately 80,000 square feet of space under an operating lease that expires in 2010. This facility houses all of our U.S. operations, including
research and development, manufacturing, sales and marketing and general and administrative departments. Under the terms of the lease, we have two five-year
options to extend our lease term beyond 2010 at market rates. We have also recently entered into a short-term lease for office space in Washington, DC.

Our European headquarters are located in Aachen, Germany in a leased facility of approximately 33,000 square feet. Our lease expires in December 2012. The
building houses all of the research and development and manufacturing operations for our Impella product line as well as the sales, marketing and general and
administrative functions for most of our product lines sold in Europe and the Middle East. In addition, we recently leased an approximately 270 square foot office
in France, which will focus on the sales and marketing of our product lines sold in France.

ITEM 3.    LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
On May 15, 2006, Richard A. Nazarian, as Selling Stockholder Representative, filed a Demand for Arbitration (subsequently amended) with the Boston office of
the American Arbitration Association. The claim arises out of our purchase of intellectual property rights relating to the Penn State Heart and the acquisition of
BeneCor Heart Systems. The claim seeks 600,000 unrestricted shares of Abiomed common stock and attorneys� fees for an alleged breach of our obligation to fund
development of the Penn State Heart program and an alleged cancellation of the Penn State Heart development project. We instituted a legal action in Federal
Court to determine the arbitrability of the claims asserted and the Federal Court has stayed the arbitration of a portion of the claim. The arbitration hearings have
been completed and we are awaiting a decision.

ITEM 4.    SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT�S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Market Price

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol �ABMD.� The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices per
share of common stock, as reported by the Nasdaq Global Market for our two most recent fiscal years:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006 High Low
First Quarter $ 11.91 $ 7.75
Second Quarter 10.97 8.31
Third Quarter 10.15 7.81
Fourth Quarter 13.40 9.12

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007 High Low
First Quarter $ 14.14 $ 11.48
Second Quarter 16.19 12.25
Third Quarter 15.65 12.07
Fourth Quarter 15.10 12.12

Number of Stockholders

As of June 6, 2007, we had approximately 739 holders of record of our common stock and approximately 10,624 beneficial holders of our common stock. Many
beneficial holders hold their stock through depositories, banks and brokers included as a single holder in the single �street� name of each respective depository, bank,
or broker.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable
future. We anticipate that we will retain all of our future earnings, if any, to support operations and to finance the growth and development of our business. Our
payment of any future dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon our financial condition, operating results, cash needs and
growth plans.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the yearly change in the cumulative total stockholder return for our last five full fiscal years, based upon the market price of our
common stock, with the cumulative total return on a Nasdaq Composite Index (U.S. Companies) and a peer group, the Nasdaq Medical Equipment-SIC Code
3840-3849 Index, which is comprised of medical equipment companies, for that period. The performance graph assumes the investment of $100 on March 31,
2002 in our Common Stock, the Nasdaq Composite Index (U.S. Companies) and the peer group index, and the reinvestment of any and all dividends.

Cumulative Total Return ($)
3/31/02 3/31/03 3/31/04 3/31/05 3/31/06 3/31/07

ABIOMED, Inc. 100.00 35.14 73.78 95.32 116.22 123.06
Nasdaq Composite Index 100.00 74.26 109.10 109.77 129.91 133.87
Nasdaq Medical Equipment SIC Code 3840-3849 100.00 91.78 140.83 149.72 182.27 190.47
This graph is not �soliciting material� under Regulation 14A or 14C of the rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, is not deemed filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated by reference in any of our filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Exchange Act whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

As described in our current report on Form 8-K dated January 30, 2007 and filed on February 5, 2007, on January 30, 2007 we issued 402,279 shares of our
common stock to the former shareholders of Impella CardioSystems AG.

Transfer Agent and Rights Agent

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, 59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038, is our stock Transfer Agent and Rights Agent.
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ITEM 6.    SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

(In thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue:
Products $ 23,127 $ 25,070 $ 37,945 $ 43,322 $ 50,408
Funded research and development 183 669 271 348 241

23,310 25,739 38,216 43,670 50,649

Costs and expenses:
Cost of product revenue excluding amortization of intangibles 7,501 7,591 9,366 11,685 12,012
Research and development 20,206 14,150 13,350 16,739 22,292
Selling general and administrative 14,667 14,037 18,566 30,923 42,448
Expensed in-process research and development �  �  �  13,306 800
Amortization of intangibles 427 213 187 1,308 1,608

42,801 35,991 41,469 73,961 79,160

Loss from operations (19,491) (10,252) (3,253) (30,291) (28,511)
Interest and other income, net 1,320 806 911 1,198 1,105

Loss before provision before income taxes (18,171) (9,446) (2,342) (29,093) (27,406)
Provision for income taxes �  �  �  356 475

Net loss $ (18,171) $ (9,446) $ (2,342) $ (29,449) $ (27,881)

Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.87) $ (0.45) $ (0.11) $ (1.15) $ (1.03)

Weighted average shares outstanding 20,994 21,153 21,845 25,649 27,124

March 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and long-term investments $ 54,449 $ 45,483 $   43,617 $ 30,835 $ 75,125
Working capital 56,987 32,096 50,342 37,704 83,485
Total assets 68,516 59,161 61,061 78,537 136,183
Stockholders� equity 62,090 54,336 56,179 69,488 122,095
Dividends �  �  �  �  �  
Note: Fiscal year 2006 and fiscal year 2007 include the results of operations attributable to Impella from the date of acquisition, May 10, 2005. Information about
our acquisition of Impella is set forth in Note 8 of our consolidated financial statements included in this report.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
All statements, trend analysis and other information contained in the following discussion relative to markets for our products and trends in sales, gross profit and
anticipated expense levels, as well as other statements, including words such as �may,� �anticipate,� �believe,� �plan,� �estimate,� �expect,� and �intend�
and other similar expressions constitute forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to business and economic risks and
uncertainties, and our actual results of operations may differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or
contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed under Item 1A Risk Factors as well as other risks and uncertainties referenced in this
report.

Overview

We are a leading provider of medical devices in circulatory support and we offer a continuum of care in heart recovery to acute heart failure patients. Our strategy
is focused on establishing heart recovery as the goal for all acute cardiac attacks. Our products are designed to enable the heart to rest, heal and recover by
improving blood flow and/or performing the pumping function of the heart. We believe we are the only company with commercially available cardiac assist
devices approved for heart recovery by the Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, and our products have been used to treat thousands of patients to date. Our
products can be used in a broad range of clinical settings, including by heart surgeons for patients in profound shock and by interventional cardiologists for
patients who are in pre-shock or in need of prophylactic support in the cardiac catheterization lab, or cath lab. We are focused on increasing awareness of heart
recovery and establishing it as the goal for patients with failing but potentially recoverable hearts. We expect recovery awareness and utilization of our products
will significantly increase the number of patients able to return home from the hospital with their own hearts. Since 2004, our new executive team has focused our
efforts on expanding our product portfolio, and we have eight disposable products that have either been approved or cleared by the FDA or have received CE mark
approval, as well as several additional products in development.

Critical Accounting Policies

Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial statements. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to revenue recognition, inventories,
impairment of intangible assets and goodwill, income taxes including the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, stock based compensation, valuation of
long-lived assets and investments, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experiences and on various other assumptions that are believed
to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ from those
estimated or assumed.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when evidence of an arrangement exists, title has passed (generally upon shipment) or services have been rendered, the selling price is fixed
or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured in accordance with the SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (�SAB 104�). Revenue from product sales to
new customers is deferred until training on the use of the products has occurred. All costs related to product shipment are recognized at time of shipment. We do
not provide for rights of return to customers on product sales.

Maintenance and service support contract revenues are recognized ratably over the term of the service contracts based upon the elapsed term of the service
contract. In limited instances, we also rent console medical devices on a month-to-month basis or for a longer specified period of time to customers for which
revenue is recognized as earned.

Government-sponsored research and development contracts and grants generally provide for payment on a cost-plus-fixed-fee basis. Revenues from these
contracts and grants are recognized as work is performed, provided the government has appropriated sufficient funds for the work. Under contracts in which we
elect to spend significantly more on the development project during the term of the contract than the
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total contract amount, we prospectively recognize revenue on such contracts ratably over the term of the contract as related research and development costs are
incurred, provided the government has appropriated sufficient funds for the work.

Intangibles

We estimate the fair value of acquisition-related intangible assets principally based on projections of cash flows that will arise from identifiable intangible assets of
acquired businesses. The projected cash flows are discounted to determine the present value of the assets at the dates of acquisition. We review intangible assets
for impairment whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be fully recoverable or that the useful
lives of these assets are no longer appropriate. Factors considered important which could trigger an impairment review include significant changes relative to:
(i) projected future operating results; (ii) the use of the assets or the strategy for the overall business; (iii) business collaborations; and (iv) industry, business, or
economic trends and developments. Each impairment test is based on a comparison of the undiscounted cash flow to the recorded value of the asset. If it is
determined that the carrying value of intangible assets may not be recoverable, the asset is written down to its estimated fair value on a discounted cash flow basis.
The net book value of intangible assets at March 31, 2007 was approximately $7.3 million.

Goodwill

We periodically evaluate goodwill for impairment using forecasts of discounted future cash flows. Estimates of future cash flows require assumptions related to
revenue and operating income growth, asset-related expenditures, working capital levels and other factors. Different assumptions from those made in our analysis
could materially affect projected cash flows and our evaluation of goodwill for impairment. Should the fair value of goodwill decline because of reduced operating
performance, market declines, delays in regulatory approval, or other indicators of impairment, or as a result of changes in the discount rate, charges for
impairment of goodwill may be necessary. We performed our annual impairment review for fiscal 2007 as of October 31, 2006 and determined that goodwill was
not impaired. The carrying amount of goodwill at March 31, 2007 was $26.7 million.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We regularly monitor collections and payments from our customers and maintain a provision for estimated losses based upon our historical experience and any
specific customer collection issues that we have identified. Although such credit losses have historically been within our expectations and the provisions
established, we cannot guarantee that we will continue to experience the same credit loss rates that we have in the past. If the financial condition of our customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances would be required.

Warranties

Our products are subject to rigorous regulation and quality standards. Although we have established extensive product quality programs and processes, including
monitoring and evaluating the quality of our component suppliers, we record a warranty obligation related to anticipated product failure rates and product recalls.
Our Consoles are covered by a one-year limited manufacturer�s warranty. We estimate and record a warranty obligation in cost of revenue at the time of shipment
and we record any additional amounts when we determine that such costs are probable and we can reasonably estimate them. Historically, our warranty provision
has not been substantial; however, our operating results could be adversely affected if the actual cost of any product failures, including product recalls, exceeds our
estimated warranty provision.

Inventories

We value our inventory of products held for sale at the lower of cost or current estimated market value. We regularly review inventory quantities on hand and
write down to its net realizable value any inventory believed to be impaired. If actual demand or market conditions are less favorable than projected demand,
additional inventory write-downs may be required that could adversely impact financial results for the period in which the additional excess or obsolete inventory
is identified. We recorded write-downs of inventory in the amount of $0.0 million, $0.4 million, and $0.2 million for fiscal 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

In fiscal 2007, in accordance with Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 123(R) Share-Based Payment, we began recording stock-based
compensation in our statement of operations based on the fair value method, rather than the intrinsic method. This expense is determined after consideration of
several significant judgments and estimates. The fair value of each stock option we granted is
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estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Use of a valuation model requires us to make certain assumptions with respect to selected model inputs.
The risk-free interest rate is based on the United States Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for a term consistent with the expected life of the stock
options. Volatility assumptions are calculated based on a combination of the historical volatility of our stock and adjustments for factors not reflected in historical
volatility that are more indicative of future volatility. By using this combination, we are taking into consideration estimates of future volatility that we believe will
differ from historical volatility as a result of product diversification and our acquisition of Impella. The average expected life was estimated using the simplified
method for determining the expected term as prescribed by the SEC�s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 Share-based Payment. The calculation of the fair value of
the options is net of estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures are estimated based on an analysis of actual option forfeitures, adjusted to the extent historic forfeitures may
not be indicative of forfeitures in the future. In addition, an expected dividend yield of zero is used in the option valuation model, because we do not pay dividends
and do not expect to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Prior to April 1, 2006, we accounted for stock-based compensation plans in accordance with the provisions of APB No. 25. We followed the disclosure-only
alternative requirements of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Accordingly, we did not recognize compensation expense for the issuance
of options with fixed exercise prices at least equal to the fair market value at the date of the grant.

Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we
operate. This process involves us estimating our actual current tax exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of
items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities. In addition, as of March 31, 2007, we had federal and state tax
net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $79.2 million and $36.9 million, respectively, that begin to expire in fiscal 2008. At March 31, 2007, we also
had foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $20.6 million that can be carried forward indefinitely. We have federal and state research and
development credit carryforwards of approximately $6.3 million and $4.3 million, respectively, that begin to expire in fiscal 2008. We have recorded a valuation
allowance of $80.1 million as an offset against these net deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty surrounding the timing of the realization of the tax benefit. In the
event that we determine in the future that we will be able to realize all or a portion of our net deferred tax benefit, an adjustment to deferred tax valuation
allowance would increase net income in the period such a determination was made. Ownership changes, as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code,
may have limited the amount of net operating loss carryforwards and research and experimentation credit carryforwards that we can use each year to offset future
taxable income and taxes payable. Subsequent ownership changes could impose additional limitations. We have not done a complete analysis to determine
whether changes in the composition of our stockholders, including as a result of our acquisition of Impella or our recent public offering, have resulted or will result
in an ownership change for purposes of Section 382.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FIN No. 48

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) released FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes � an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48). FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for how a company should recognize, measure, present, and
disclose in its financial statements uncertain tax positions that the company has taken or expects to take on a tax return. Under FIN 48, the financial statements will
reflect expected future tax consequences of such positions presuming the taxing authorities� full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts, but without
discounting for the time value of money. FIN 48 also revises disclosure requirements and introduces a prescriptive, annual, tabular roll-forward of the
unrecognized tax benefits. FIN 48 will become effective with our fiscal year beginning April 1, 2007. We are evaluating the effect that the adoption of FIN 48 may
have on our consolidated financial statements.

SFAS No. 157

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. Among other requirements, SFAS No. 157 defines fair value and establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and also expands disclosure requirements regarding fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those years. We are evaluating the impact that the adoption of
SFAS No. 157 may have on our consolidated financial statements.

SFAS No. 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which provides companies with an
option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value in an attempt to reduce both complexity in accounting for financial instruments and the
volatility in earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently. This Statement is effective
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as of the beginning of an entity�s first fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007. We are evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 159 may have
on our consolidated financial statements.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain consolidated statements of operations data for the periods indicated as a percentage of total revenues (which includes
revenues from products and funded research and development):

Year Ended March 31,
2005 2006 2007

Revenues:
Products 99.3% 99.2% 99.5%
Funded research and development 0.7 0.8 0.5

Total revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0

Costs and expenses:
Cost of product revenues excluding amortization of intangibles 24.5 26.8 23.7
Research and development 34.9 38.3 44.0
Selling, general and administrative 48.6 70.7 83.8
Expensed in-process research and development �  30.5 1.6
Amortization of intangibles 0.5 3.0 3.2

Total costs and expenses 108.5 169.3 156.3

Loss from operations (8.5) (69.3) (56.3)
Other income, net 2.4 2.7 2.2

Loss before income taxes (6.1) (66.6) (54.1)
Tax provision �  0.8 0.9

Net loss (6.1)% (67.4)% (55.0)%

Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006 (�fiscal 2007� and �fiscal 2006�)

Product Revenues

Product revenues for fiscal 2007 increased by $7.1 million, or 16%, to $50.4 million from $43.3 million for fiscal 2006. Revenues from disposables, service and
other programs (non-console revenues) comprised approximately 84% and 86% of total revenues for fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, respectively. For fiscal 2007
compared to fiscal 2006, revenues from Impella disposables increased 112%, AB5000 disposables revenue increased 37% and revenues from BVS declined
approximately 22%. Comparing total revenues for fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2006, total sales of our Impella products (consoles and disposables) increased
approximately 87%, total sales of our AB 5000 products (consoles and disposables) increased approximately 38%, and total sales of our BVS 5000 products
declined by approximately 22%. In summary, the increase in fiscal 2007 revenues compared to fiscal year 2006 is primarily due to higher volume from our
Impella and AB5000 products, partially offset by declines in sales of our BVS 5000 products during the period.

The dollar increase in revenue for fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 is primarily due to the effects of our strategy to increase global distribution and our
ongoing efforts to increase recovery awareness globally in hospitals, open heart centers and transplant centers. Our sales and clinical teams are focused on
stimulating demand for our products by educating surgeons and cardiologists about both the clinical benefits of recovery and the increased reimbursement
available for our heart recovery products. We expect to continue to increase sales and clinical headcount throughout fiscal 2008 with particular focus on expertise
in the cath lab and also plan to increase our marketing, service and training personnel and investments to support the efforts of the sales and clinical teams to drive
recovery awareness and revenue growth globally.

In December 2006, we announced the new iPulse Console and 510(k) clearance of our Intra-Aortic Balloon. We believe there will be U.S. market demand for our
iPulse console (combination driver for the Intra-Aortic Balloon, BVS and AB5000) following FDA supplement approval anticipated later in the summer of
calendar 2007; however, we cannot guarantee approval. This may cause a potential shift in console revenue from the AB5000 console to our newer iPulse console
in future quarters.
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Cost of Product Revenues

Cost of product revenues for fiscal 2007 increased $0.3 million or 3%, to $12.0 million from $11.7 million for fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2007, utilization of our
German manufacturing capacity was higher than it was in fiscal 2006. Additionally, the lower cost of goods sold from
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disposable products offset increased cost of goods sold from consoles, and our SAP implementation in July 2006 resulted in improved efficiencies that lowered
cost of goods sold during fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006. The aggregate effect of these factors resulted in cost of goods sold during fiscal 2007 being
approximately flat as compared to fiscal 2006, and decreasing as a percentage of product revenue as compared to fiscal 2006.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by $5.6 million, or 34%, to $22.3 million in fiscal 2007, from $16.7 million in fiscal 2006. Research and
development expenses for fiscal 2007 included stock compensation expense of $1.7 million and clinical trial expenses associated with our Impella 2.5 and 5.0 pilot
trials of $1.6 million. Our increases in product development costs reflect our efforts to expand and enhance our product lines across a clinical spectrum of care in
the cath lab and surgery suite. During fiscal 2007, we invested in new product development to broaden our portfolio of products in the circulatory care markets. In
addition, our research and development expenditures include costs related to clinical trials, including pilot trials for our Impella products.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $11.5 million, or 37%, to $42.4 million in fiscal 2007, from $30.9 million in fiscal 2006. The increase is
due primarily to increased costs of $4.6 million associated with our strategy to increase our global distribution, specifically our global sales, marketing and clinical
specialist organizations. Total global sales and clinical headcount at the end of fiscal 2007 was 60 compared to 45 at the end of fiscal 2006, representing an
increase of 33%. Selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2007 also included $3.8 million of stock-based compensation expense, costs associated
with our ERP implementation and increased professional fees.

We expect to continue to increase sales and clinical headcount throughout fiscal 2008 and also plan to increase our marketing, service and training personnel and
investments to support the efforts of the sales and clinical teams to drive recovery awareness globally.

Expensed In-Process Research and Development Expenses

We recorded a charge of $0.8 million during the quarter ended June 30, 2006 in connection with the acquisition of certain circulatory care device patents and
know-how. This charge relates to costs to acquire in-process research and development projects and technologies, which had not reached technological feasibility
at the date of the asset acquisition and had no alternative future use.

We recorded a $13.3 million non-cash charge to in-process research and development expense during the quarter ended June 30, 2005 in connection with our
acquisition of Impella on May 10, 2005. This charge relates to costs to acquire in-process research and development projects and technologies, which had not
reached technological feasibility at the date of the business acquisition and had no alternative future use.

Other Income, Net

Other income, net consists primarily of interest earned on our cash and investments. Other income, net was $1.1 million for fiscal 2007, representing a decrease of
$0.1 million from $1.2 million for fiscal 2006. The decrease in other income, net is primarily driven by lower investment income as a result of cash used in
operations throughout the fiscal year.

Tax Provision

As of March 31, 2007, we have accumulated a net deferred tax liability in the amount of $1.2 million which is primarily the result of a difference in accounting for
our goodwill associated with the acquisition of Impella which is amortized over 15 years for tax purposes but not amortized for book purposes. The net deferred
tax liability cannot be offset against our deferred tax assets under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles since it relates to an indefinite-lived asset and is
not anticipated to reverse in the same period. For fiscal 2007, we have recorded a deferred tax provision related to amortization of goodwill in the amount of $0.5
million. Differences between amounts recorded as a deferred tax liability on the balance sheet versus amounts recorded in the statement of operations result from
deferred tax adjustments for foreign currency fluctuations. Other than this provision, we have not recorded an income tax benefit on our operating loss because it
was more likely than not that we would not realize the benefits of our deferred tax assets.

Net Loss

During fiscal 2007, we incurred a net loss of $27.9 million, or $1.03 per share, including the effects of stock-based compensation expense. This compares to a net
loss of $29.4 million, or $1.15 per share, for the prior fiscal year which represents a decrease in net loss of
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$1.5 million. The decrease in the net loss in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 is due primarily to increased revenue of $6.9 million and $12.5 million in
decreases of acquired in-process research and development, partially offset by increased selling, general and administrative expenses of $11.5 million for the
expansion of our global distribution; and an increase of $5.6 million in research and development expenses to expand our portfolio of circulatory care products.
Included in the amounts reflected above for fiscal 2007 is stock-based compensation expense of $5.8 million, or approximately $0.21 per share, as a result of our
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) in the first quarter of fiscal 2007.

Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2006 and March 31, 2005 (�fiscal 2006� and �fiscal 2005�)

Product Revenues

Product revenues for fiscal 2006 increased by $5.4 million, or 14%, to $43.3 million from $37.9 million for fiscal 2005. Revenues from disposables, service and
other programs (non-console revenues) comprised approximately 86% of total revenues for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005. For fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005,
revenues from AB5000 disposables revenue increased 30% and revenues from BVS declined approximately 6%. Comparing total revenues for fiscal 2006 to fiscal
2005, total sales of our AB 5000 products (consoles and disposables) increased approximately 26%, and total sales of our BVS 5000 products declined by
approximately 9%. In summary, the increase in fiscal 2006 revenues compared to fiscal 2005 is primarily due to higher volume from our AB5000 products and the
addition of Impella product revenues since our acquisition in May 2005, partially offset by declines in sales of our BVS 5000 products during the period.

The higher revenue during fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 is due to the effects of the increased global distribution during fiscal 2006 versus fiscal 2005 as
headcount for our sales and clinical teams was 45 at the end of fiscal 2006, up nearly 70% since the end of fiscal 2005. These sales and clinical teams have been
focused on increasing recovery awareness in the hospitals and open heart centers globally. On October 1, 2005, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
(CMS) increased reimbursement for our recovery VADs to an average of $140,000, an increase of 70% from prior levels, and now at the same level of
reimbursement as transplant VADs sold by other medical device companies. We believe that this change in reimbursement, an increase in published recovery data
using our products, together with the increased global distribution teams, generated the increase in revenues in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005.

Cost of Product Revenues

Cost of product revenues increased by $2.3 million, or 25%, to $11.7 million in fiscal 2006 from $9.4 million in fiscal 2005. As a percentage of product revenues,
cost of product revenues was 27% in fiscal 2006 compared to 25% in fiscal 2005. The increase year over year is due primarily to the inclusion of cost of product
revenues for Impella products in fiscal 2006 and increased costs of product revenues for our AB 5000 and BVS 5000 as we sold more of these products in fiscal
2006 compared to fiscal 2005. Additionally, during fiscal 2006 we recorded a non-cash charge of approximately $0.4 million primarily as a result of determining
that certain inventory had no future net realizable value.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by $3.3 million, or 25%, to $16.7 million in fiscal 2006, from $13.4 million in fiscal 2005. The increase is primarily
the result of including Impella�s research and development expense since our acquisition in May 2005 and also reflects our efforts to expand and enhance our
product lines across a clinical spectrum of care in the cath lab and surgery suite. During fiscal 2006, we invested in new product development to broaden our
portfolio of products in the circulatory care market.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $12.3 million, or 67%, to $30.9 million in fiscal 2006, from $18.6 million in fiscal 2005. The increase is
primarily due to the inclusion of Impella expenses during fiscal 2006 and also due to our strategy to increase our global distribution, specifically our global sales,
service, marketing and clinical specialists organizations. Total global sales and clinical headcount at the end of fiscal 2006 was 45 compared to 27 at the end of
fiscal 2005, representing an increase of 67%.

Expensed In-Process Research and Development Expenses

We recorded a $13.3 million non-cash charge to in-process research and development expense during the quarter ended June 30, 2005 in connection with our
acquisition of Impella on May 10, 2005. This charge relates to costs to acquire in-process research and development projects and technologies, which had not
reached technological feasibility at the date of the business acquisition and had no alternative future use.
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Other Income, Net

Other income, net consists primarily of interest earned on our cash and investments. Other income, net was $1.2 million for fiscal 2006 compared to $0.9 million
for fiscal 2005. This increase was primarily due to higher investment income.

Tax Provision

In fiscal 2005, we had no tax provision as we were in a loss position and it was more likely than not that we would not recognize the benefit of the net operating
losses. As part of the Impella acquisition in May 2005, we obtained tax-deductible goodwill amounting to $13.9 million. The difference between tax and financial
statement cumulative amortization on tax-deductible goodwill gave rise to a long-term deferred tax liability of $0.3 million. This deferred tax liability cannot be
used as a source of taxable income in the determination of the valuation allowance. Valuation allowances for deferred tax assets are established when necessary to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. Based on future operating results, expected at the end of fiscal 2006, we believed that it was more
likely than not that we would not realize the benefits of our deferred tax assets.

Net Loss

During fiscal 2006 we incurred a net loss of $29.4 million, or $1.15 per share. This compares to a net loss of $2.3 million, or $0.11 per share for fiscal 2005. The
$27.1 million change in the net loss in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 is due primarily to: a $13.3 million non-cash in-process research and development
charge; increased selling, general and administrative expenses of $12.3 million as we expanded our global distribution; and an increase of $3.3 million in research
and development expenses as we drove our strategy to expand our product portfolio across a clinical spectrum.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have supported our operations primarily with revenues from sales of our AB5000, BVS 5000 and Impella circulatory product lines, government contracts,
proceeds from equity financings and stock option exercises. At March 31, 2007, our cash and investments totaled $75.1 million, an increase of $44.3 million
compared to $30.8 million in cash and investments at March 31, 2006.

During fiscal 2007, cash used by operating activities was $19.8 million as compared to $9.3 million during the same period in the prior year. Our net loss of $27.9
million is the primary cause of our cash use from operations. Our net loss is primarily attributed to increased investments in our global distribution as we continue
to pursue initiatives to increase recovery awareness as well as our investments in research and development intended to broaden our portfolios of circulatory care
products. In addition, our inventories increased by $4.1 million from March 31, 2006, reflecting our inventory build-up to support anticipated increases in global
demand for our products and our accounts receivable also increased by $1.9 million as a result of higher volume. Amounts partially offsetting cash used from our
net loss, inventory build up and increased accounts receivable are increases in accounts payable of $1.6 million, non-cash adjustments of $5.8 million related to
stock-based compensation expense as a result of our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), $3.9 million of depreciation and amortization, and $0.5 million for changes in
our deferred tax liability.

Investment activities for fiscal 2007 provided $15.1 million, comprised primarily of $35.2 million of proceeds from the sale and maturity of short-term securities
offset by purchases of short-term securities of $17.7 million, and expenditures for property and equipment of $2.4 million.

Cash provided by financing activities for fiscal 2007 is primarily attributed to $63.6 million in net proceeds received from our March 2007 equity financing and
proceeds received from the exercise of stock options and our ESPP in the amount of $2.8 million and $0.3 million, respectively.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2008 are estimated to be in the range of $2.5 million to $3.5 million which will support the international phase of our ERP (SAP)
implementation as well as our plans to build manufacturing capacity.

We believe that our revenue from product sales together with existing resources will be sufficient to fund our operations during the next twelve months.
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table (in thousands) summarizes our contractual obligations at March 31, 2007 and the effects such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity
and cash flows in future periods.

Payments Due By Fiscal Year

Contractual Obligations Total

Less
than 1
Year

1-3
Years

3-5
Years

More
than 5
Years

Operating Lease Obligations $ 7,669 $   1,960 $   3,441 $   1,652 $   616
Purchase Obligations 6,421 6,421 �  �  �  

Total Obligations $ 14,090 $ 8,381 $ 3,441 $ 1,652 $ 616

We have no long-term debt, capital leases or material commitments at March 31, 2007 other than those shown in the table above.

In May 2005, we acquired all the shares of outstanding capital stock of Impella CardioSystems AG, a company headquartered in Aachen, Germany. The aggregate
purchase price excluding a contingent payment in the amount of $5.6 million made on January 30, 2007 in the form of common stock, was approximately $45.1
million, which consisted of $42.2 million of our common stock, $1.6 million of cash paid to certain former shareholders of Impella, and $1.3 million of transaction
costs, consisting primarily of fees paid for financial advisory and legal services. We may make additional contingent payments to Impella�s former shareholders
based on additional milestone payments related to FDA approvals in the amount of up to $11.2 million. These contingent payments may be made in a combination
of cash or stock under circumstances described in the purchase agreement. If any contingent payments are made, they will result in an increase to the carrying
value of goodwill.

We apply the disclosure provisions of FIN No. 45, Guarantor�s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Guarantees of Indebtedness
of Others, and Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34 (FIN No. 45) to our agreements that contain
guarantee or indemnification clauses. These disclosure provisions expand those required by SFAS No. 5 by requiring that guarantors disclose certain types of
guarantees, even if the likelihood of requiring the guarantor�s performance is remote. The following is a description of arrangements in which we are a guarantor.

We enter into agreements with other companies in the ordinary course of business, typically with underwriters, contractors, clinical sites and customers that
include indemnification provisions. Under these provisions we generally indemnify and hold harmless the indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred by the
indemnified party as a result of our activities. These indemnification provisions generally survive termination of the underlying agreement. The maximum
potential amount of future payments we could be required to make under these indemnification provisions is unlimited. We have never incurred any material costs
to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnification agreements. As a result, the estimated fair value of these agreements is minimal. Accordingly,
we have no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of March 31, 2007.

Clinical study agreements � In our clinical study agreements, we have agreed to indemnify the participating institutions against losses incurred by them for claims
related to any personal injury of subjects taking part in the study to the extent they relate to use of our devices in accordance with the clinical study agreement, the
protocol for the device and our instructions. The indemnification provisions contained within our clinical study agreements do not generally include limits on the
claims. We have never incurred any material costs related to the indemnification provisions contained in our clinical study agreements.

Product warranties�We routinely accrue for estimated future warranty costs on our product sales at the time of shipment. All of our products are subject to rigorous
regulation and quality standards. While we engage in extensive product quality programs and processes, including monitoring and evaluating the quality of our
component suppliers, our warranty obligations are affected by product failure rates. Our operating results could be adversely affected if the actual cost of product
failures exceeds the estimated warranty provision.

Patent indemnifications�In many sales transactions, we indemnify customers against possible claims of patent infringement caused by our products. The
indemnifications contained within sales contracts usually do not include limits on the claims. We have never incurred any material costs to defend lawsuits or
settle patent infringement claims related to sales transactions. Under the provisions of FIN No. 45, intellectual property indemnifications require disclosure only.
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ITEM 7A.    QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK
Derivative Financial Instruments and Derivative Commodity Instruments

We do not participate in derivative financial instruments or derivative commodity instruments.

Primary Market Risk Exposures

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our investment portfolio, which consists primarily of money market funds,
commercial paper and corporate bonds with maturities of one year or less at March 31, 2007. The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve
principal while maximizing yields without significantly increasing risk. This is accomplished by investing in high investment grade securities with ratings of at
least AA by Moody�s or Standard & Poor�s as well as investment portfolio diversification. Our held-to-maturity securities are subject to interest rate risk and will
fall in value if market interest rates increase. If market interest rates were to increase immediately and uniformly by 10 percent from levels at March 31, 2007, we
believe the decline in fair market value of our investment portfolio would be immaterial. We believe, however, that we have the ability to hold our fixed income
investments until maturity and therefore would not expect our operating results or cash flows to be affected to any significant degree by a change in market interest
rates on our securities portfolio.

Currency Exchange Rates

Our Impella subsidiary�s functional currency is the Euro. Therefore, our investment in Impella is sensitive to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The effect of
a change in currency exchange rates on our net investment in international subsidiaries is reflected in the �accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)�
component of stockholders� equity. Had a 10% depreciation in the Euro occurred relative to the U.S. dollar as of March 31, 2007, the result would have been a
reduction of stockholders� equity of approximately $3.7 million.

ITEM 8.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Our Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data are provided under Part IV, Item 15 of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
On November 9, 2006, the audit committee of Abiomed, Inc. approved the dismissal of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, effective as of November 9, 2006 and
approved the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007. In connection
with our change in accountants, there were no disagreements or reportable events required to be disclosed pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 304(a)(1)(iv) and
Item 304(a)(1)(v).

ITEM 9A.    CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the �Exchange Act�)) as of March 31, 2007. Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of March 31, 2007, these disclosure controls and procedures were
effective to provide reasonable assurance that material information required to be disclosed by us, including our consolidated subsidiaries, in reports that we file or
submit under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that
we file or submit under the Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Evaluation of Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we
assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our assessment under the framework in Internal Control�Integrated Framework ,
our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of March 31, 2007.

Important Considerations

Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Our internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm that audited our financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2007, included in this
annual report, has issued an attestation report on management�s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. This report is set forth below:

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

ABIOMED, Inc.

Danvers, Massachusetts

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that ABIOMED,
Inc. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal executive and principal
financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the
internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, is fairly stated, in
all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31,
2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements
and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007 of the Company and our report dated June 12, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion
on those financial statements and financial statement schedule and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the change in method of accounting for
share-based payments upon the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, on April 1, 2006.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

June 12, 2007

ITEM 9B.    OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART III

ITEM 10.    DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the information in our definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days
after the close of our fiscal year captioned:

� �Proposal No. 1: Election of Directors,�

� �Executive Officers,�

� �Audit Committee Report,�

� �Corporate Governance,� and

� �Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.�
We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller and persons
performing similar functions. A paper copy of our code of ethics may be obtained free of charge by writing to us care of our Compliance Officer at our principal
executive office located at 22 Cherry Hill Drive, Danvers, Massachusetts 01923, or by email at IR@abiomed.com.

ITEM 11.    EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by Item 11 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the information in our definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days
after the close of our fiscal year end captioned:

� �Executive Compensation�

� �Compensation Discussion and Analysis,�

� �Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,� and

� �Compensation Committee Report.�

ITEM 12.    SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
            STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the information in our definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days
after the close of our fiscal year end captioned:
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� �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.�

� �Equity Compensation Plans�

ITEM 13.    CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the information in our definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days
after the close of our fiscal year end captioned:

� �Executive Compensation,� and

� �Proposal No. 1: Election of Directors,� and

� �Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.�

ITEM 14.    PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by Item 14 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference to the information in our definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days
after the close of our fiscal year end captioned:

� �Principal Accountant Fees and Services.�
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PART IV

ITEM 15.    EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) The financial statements from our Annual Report for our fiscal year ending March 31, 2007 are attached hereto.

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7

(2) Consolidated financial statement schedule
Schedule II: Valuation and qualifying accounts

(3) Exhibits
EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

No. Description

Filed with

this

Form

10-K

Incorporated by Reference

Form Filing Date

Exhibit

No.
2.1 Share Purchase Agreement for the acquisition of

Impella Cardio Systems AG, dated April 26, 2005.
8-K May 16, 2005 2.1

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation. S-3 September 29, 1997 3.1

3.2 Restated By-Laws, as amended. 10-K May 27, 2004 3.2

3.3 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock�filed as Exhibit 3.3 to the
1997 Registration Statement.*

S-3 September 29, 1997 3.3

3.4 Amendment to the Company�s Restated Certificate of
Incorporation to increase the authorized shares of
common stock from 25,000,000 to 100,000,000.

8-K March 21, 2007 3.4

4.1 Specimen Certificate of common stock. S-1 June 5, 1987 4.1

4.2 Rights Agreement between ABIOMED and its transfer
agent, as Rights Agent dated as of August 13, 1997
(including Form of Rights Certificate attached thereto
as Exhibit A).

8-K August 25, 1997 4

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement for Directors and
Officers.

S-1 June 5, 1987 10.13
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10.2* 1992 Combination Stock Option Plan. 10-Q October 27, 1995 10.2

10.3* Amendment to 1992 Combination Stock Option Plan. 10-Q October 14, 1997 10.2

10.4* 1988 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended. 10-Q February 8, 2005 10.11

10.5* 1989 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for
Non-Employee Directors.

10-Q October 27, 1995 10.1
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Exhibit

No. Description

Filed with

this

Form

10-K

Incorporated by Reference

Form Filing Date

Exhibit

No.
10.6 Facility Lease dated January 8, 1999 for the

premises at 22 Cherry Hill Drive. filed as Exhibit
10 to our Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
December 31, 1998.

10-Q February 12, 1999 10

10.7* 1998 Equity Incentive Plan. 10-Q/A January 8, 1999 (for the quarter ended
September 30, 1998)

10

10.8* Form of Change of Control Agreement. 10-Q November 9, 1999 10(b)
10.9* Schedule related to Change of Control Agreement. 10-Q November 9, 1999 10(c)
10.10* 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Agreement, as amended. Def 14A July 15, 2005 Appendix A
10.11 Employment Agreement of Michael R. Minogue

dated April 5, 2004.
10-Q August 9, 2004 10.10

10.12 Inducement stock option granted to Michael R.
Minogue dated April 5, 2004.

10-Q August 9, 2004 10.11

10.13 Registration Rights and Stock Restriction
Agreement between Abiomed, Inc. and
Stockholders of Impella CardioSystems AG.

8-K May 16, 2005 10.1

10.14 Consulting Agreement between Abiomed, Inc. and
Dr. David M. Lederman dated October 17, 2005.

8-K October 21, 2005 10.1

10.15* Restricted Stock Agreement between Abiomed,
Inc. and Michael R. Minogue.

10-Q October 9, 2005 10.15

10.16* Offer letter with Daniel Sutherby dated December
13, 2005.

10-Q February 9, 2006 10.15

10.17* Form of Abiomed, Inc. Non-Statutory Stock
Option Agreement for the 2000 Stock Incentive
Plan for Directors.

10-Q February 9, 2006 10.16

10.18* Form of Abiomed, Inc. Non-Statutory Stock
Option Agreement for the 2000 Stock Incentive
Plan for Employees or Consultants.

10-Q February 9, 2006 10.17

10.19* Summary of Executive Compensation. X
10.20* Summary of Director Compensation. X
10.21* Form of Employment, Nondisclosure and Non

Competition Agreement�as filed as Exhibit to our
Form for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.

10-K June 14, 2006 10.20

10.22 Software License Agreement between Abiomed,
Inc. and AnswerThink, Inc. dated November 30,
2005.

10-Q February 9, 2006 10.20

10.23 Consulting Agreement between Abiomed, Inc. and
AnswerThink, Inc. dated September 15, 2006.

10-Q February 8, 2007 10.23

10.24 Distribution Agreement between Abiomed, Inc.
and MEDIX Japan, Inc. dated November 4, 2006.

10-Q February 8, 2007 10.24

11.1 Statement regarding computation of Per Share
Earnings (see Note 2, Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements).

X

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant. X
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent

registered public accounting firm.
X

23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
independent registered public accounting firm.

X
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Exhibit

No. Description

Filed with

this

Form

10-K

Incorporated by Reference

Form Filing Date

Exhibit

No.
31.1 Rule 13a�14(a)/15d�14(a) certification of principal

executive officer.
X

31.2 Rule 13a�14(a)/15d�14(a) certification of principal
accounting officer.

X

32.1 Section 1350 certification. X

* Management contract or compensatory plan.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

ABIOMED, Inc.

Dated: June 13, 2007 By: /s/    DANIEL J. SUTHERBY        

Daniel J. Sutherby
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer)
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in
the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/    MICHAEL R. MINOGUE

Michael R. Minogue

Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman
(Principal Executive Officer)

June 13, 2007

/s/    DANIEL J. SUTHERBY        

Daniel J. Sutherby

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer)

June 13, 2007

/s/    W. GERALD AUSTEN          

W. Gerald Austen

Director June 13, 2007

/s/    RONALD W. DOLLENS        

Ronald W. Dollens

Director June 13, 2007

/s/    DAVID GOTTLIEB        

David Gottlieb

Director June 13, 2007

/s/    LOUIS E. LATAIF

Louis E. Lataif

Director June 13, 2007

/s/    DESMOND H. O�CONNELL, JR.

Desmond H. O�Connell, Jr.

Director June 13, 2007

/s/    DOROTHY E. PUHY

Dorothy E. Puhy

Director June 13, 2007

/s/    ERIC A. ROSE

Eric A. Rose

Director June 13, 2007
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/s/    HENRI A. TERMEER

Henri A. Termeer

Director June 13, 2007
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ABIOMED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Financial Statements

Index
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

ABIOMED, Inc.

Danvers, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of ABIOMED, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company") as of March 31, 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. Our audit also included the 2007 financial statement schedule
listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ABIOMED, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
March 31, 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for share-based payments upon the adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, on April 1, 2006.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated June 12, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment of
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

June 12, 2007

F-1
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of ABIOMED, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations, of stockholders' equity
and of cash flows for each of two years in the period ended March 31, 2006 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ABIOMED, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at March 31, 2006 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended March 31, 2006, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the Index
appearing under Item 15(a)(2) for each of the two years in the period ended March 31, 2006 presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on
our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

June 12, 2006

F-2
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ABIOMED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share data)

March 31,
2006 2007

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,832 $ 69,646
Short-term marketable securities 23,003 5,479
Accounts receivable, net 8,880 10,932
Inventories 4,868 8,567
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,860 1,758

Total current assets 46,443 96,382

Property and equipment, net 4,824 5,764
Intangible assets, net 8,164 7,329
Goodwill 19,106 26,708

Total Assets $ 78,537 $ 136,183

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,070 $ 5,185
Accrued expenses 5,185 7,017
Deferred revenue 484 695

Total current liabilities 8,739 12,897

Long-term deferred tax liability 310 1,191

Total Liabilities 9,049 14,088

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders� equity:
Class B Preferred stock, $.01 par value �  �  
Authorized�1,000,000 shares; Issued and outstanding�none
Common Stock, $.01 par value�
Authorized�100,000,000 shares; Issued�26,474,270 shares at March 31, 2006
and 32,254,577 at March 31, 2007
Outstanding�26,468,091 at March 31, 2006 and 32,243,558 at March 31, 2007 265 323
Additional paid-in capital 214,666 292,467
Deferred stock-based compensation (171) �  
Accumulated deficit (143,308) (171,189)
Treasury stock, at cost
6,179 shares at March 31, 2006 and 11,019 shares at March 31, 2007 (66) (116)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (1,898) 610

Total stockholders� equity 69,488 122,095

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 78,537 $ 136,183

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ABIOMED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,
2005 2006 2007

Revenue:
Products $   37,945 $ 43,322 $ 50,408
Funded research and development 271 348 241

38,216 43,670 50,649

Costs and expenses:
Cost of product revenue excluding amortization of intangibles 9,366 11,685 12,012
Research and development 13,350 16,739 22,292
Selling, general and administrative 18,566 30,923 42,448
Expensed in-process research and development �  13,306 800
Amortization of intangibles 187 1,308 1,608

41,469 73,961 79,160

Loss from operations (3,253) (30,291) (28,511)
Other income, net:
Investment income 801 1,194 1,045
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 91 (116) (27)
Other income, net 19 120 87

911 1,198 1,105

Loss before provision for income taxes (2,342) (29,093) (27,406)
Provision for income taxes �  356 475

Net loss $ (2,342) $ (29,449) $ (27,881)

Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.11) $ (1.15) $ (1.03)
Weighted average shares outstanding 21,845 25,649 27,124

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ABIOMED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity

(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Number
of

Shares
Par

Value

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Deferred
Stock-based

Compensation
Accumulated

Deficit
Treasury

Stock

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
(Loss)

Income

Total
Stockholders�

Equity
Comprehensive

(Loss)
Balance, March 31, 2004 21,386,919 $ 214 $ 165,696 $ (57) $ (111,517) $ �  $ �  $ 54,336 $
Stock options exercised 665,437 7 3,919 �  �  �  �  3,926
Stock issued under employee stock
purchase plan 21,287 �  161 �  �  �  �  161
Stock issued to directors 5,668 �  60 �  �  �  �  60
Deferred compensation related to
employee stock option grants �  �  259 (259) �  �  �  �  
Amortization of deferred compensation �  �  �  38 �  �  �  38
Net loss �  �  �  �  (2,342) �  �  (2,342) $ (2,342)

Balance, March 31, 2005 22,079,311 221 170,095 (278) (113,859) �  �  56,179
Stock issued to acquire Impella
CardioSystems AG 4,029,004 40 42,160 �  �  �  �  42,200
Restricted stock 24,000 1 �  86 �  �  �  87
Stock options exercised 313,628 3 1,952 �  �  �  �  1,955
Stock issued under employee stock
purchase plan 23,970 �  204 �  �  �  �  204
Stock issued to directors 4,357 �  56 �  �  �  �  56
Amortization of deferred compensation �  �  (9) 21 �  �  �  12
Stock compensation related to stock
options �  �  208 �  �  �  �  208
Return of common stock from escrow (6,179) �  �  �  �  (66) �  (66)
Net loss �  �  �  �  (29,449) �  �  (29,449) $ (29,449)
Foreign currency translation �  �  �  �  �  �  (1,898) (1,898) (1,898)

Comprehensive loss �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  $ (31,347)

Balance, March 31, 2006 26,468,091 265 214,666 (171) (143,308) (66) (1,898) 69,488
Stock issued to acquire Impella
CardioSystems AG 402,279 4 5,570 �  �  �  �  5,574
Common stock issued 5,000,000 50 63,501 �  �  �  �  63,551
Restricted stock �  �  (80) 171 �  �  �  91
Stock options exercised 350,933 4 2,747 �  �  �  �  2,751
Stock issued under employee stock
purchase plan 27,095 �  305 �  �  �  �  305
Stock compensation expense �  �  5,758 �  �  �  �  5,758
Return of common stock from escrow (4,840) �  �  �  �  (50) �  (50)
Net loss �  �  �  �  (27,881) �  �  (27,881) $ (27,881)
Foreign currency translation, net �  �  �  �  �  �  2,508 2,508 2,508

Comprehensive loss �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  $ (25,373)

Balance, March 31, 2007 32,243,558 $ 323 $ 292,467 $ �  $ (171,189) $ (116) $ 610 $ 122,095

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ABIOMED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,
2005 2006 2007

Operating activities:
Net loss: $ (2,342) $ (29,449) $ (27,881)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,529 3,030 3,915
Bad debt expense (recovery) (67) 193 7
Loss on abandonment of patents 49 �  �  
Loss on impairment of fixed assets �  �  75
Write-down of inventory 36 423 207
Deferred tax provision �  310 475
Stock-based compensation 98 371 5,848
Expensed in-process research and development �  13,306 �  
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
Accounts receivable (2,563) 258 (1,920)
Inventories (1,491) (465) (4,095)
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets (465) 173 159
Accounts payable (238) 1,326 1,572
Accrued expenses 355 827 1,618
Deferred revenue (65) 358 200

Net cash used in operating activities (5,164) (9,339) (19,820)

Investing activities:
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of short and long-term securities 42,169 42,016 35,187
Purchases of short and long-term securities (39,520) (29,021) (17,663)
Costs of acquisition, net of cash acquired �  (2,573) (9)
Proceeds from disposal of equipment �  11 �  
Additions to patents (36) (133) (47)
Expenditures for property and equipment (697) (2,931) (2,373)

Net cash provided by investing activities 1,916 7,369 15,095

Financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 3,926 1,955 2,751
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 161 204 305
Proceeds from public offering, net of expenses �  �  63,551
Return of common stock from escrow �  (66) (50)

Net cash provided by financing activities 4,087 2,093 66,557

Exchange rate effect on cash (56) 91 (18)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 783 214 61,814
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 6,835 7,618 7,832

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ 7,618 $ 7,832 $ 69,646

Supplemental disclosures:
Taxes paid, net of refunds $ 82 $ 59 $ 18
Common shares issued for business acquisition $ �  $ 42,200 $ 5,574

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ABIOMED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(In thousands, except share data)

Note 1. Nature of Operations

Abiomed, Inc. (the �Company� or �Abiomed�) is a leading provider of medical devices in circulatory support that offers a continuum of care in heart recovery to acute
heart failure patients. The Company�s strategy is focused on establishing heart recovery as the goal for all acute cardiac attacks. The Company�s products are
designed to enable the heart to rest, heal and recover by improving blood flow and/or performing the pumping function of the heart. Abiomed is focused on
increasing awareness of heart recovery and establishing it as the goal for patients with failing but potentially recoverable hearts. The Company expects that
recovery awareness and utilization of its products will significantly increase the number of patients able to return home from the hospital with their own hearts.

Prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation. Specifically, the Company has included amortization expense associated
with inventory used for demonstration purposes in depreciation and amortization reflected in the Company�s statements of cash flows in the amount of $0.3 million
for both fiscal year 2005 and 2006. Such amounts were previously reflected as changes in inventories in the statements of cash flows.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the application of certain significant accounting policies described below.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The financial statements include the financial results of Abiomed Europe, GMBH
(formerly Impella CardioSystems AG) from its date of acquisition on May 10, 2005.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including
those related to revenue recognition, inventories, impairment of intangible assets and goodwill, income taxes including the valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets, stock based compensation, valuation of long-lived assets and investments, contingencies and litigation. Abiomed bases its estimates on historical
experiences and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimated or assumed.

Major Customers and Concentrations of Credit Risk

Abiomed primarily sells its products to large hospitals and distributors. No customer accounted for more than 10% of total product revenues in fiscal year 2005,
2006, and 2007. No distributor customer or other customer had an accounts receivable balance greater than 10% of total accounts receivable at the end of fiscal
2006, or 2007.

Credit is extended based on an evaluation of a customer�s financial condition and generally collateral is not required. To date, credit losses have not been
significant and the Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on its assessment of the collectibility of accounts receivable. Receivables are
geographically dispersed, primarily throughout the United States, as well as in Europe and other foreign countries where formal distributor agreements exist.

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist of cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments.
Although the Company maintains cash balances at financial institutions that exceed federally insured limits, these balances are placed with high credit quality
financial institutions.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company classifies any marketable security with a maturity date of 90 days or less at the time of purchase as a cash equivalent. Cash equivalents are carried
on the balance sheet at fair market value.
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ABIOMED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Company classifies any security with a maturity date of greater than 90 days at the time of purchase as marketable securities and classifies marketable
securities with a maturity date of greater than one year from the balance sheet date as long-term investments. In accordance with Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, securities that the Company has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity are reported at amortized cost and classified as held-to-maturity securities. At March 31, 2007 the held-to-maturity investment portfolio
consisted primarily of commercial paper and corporate bonds with maturities of one year or less.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is based on the first in, first out method. The Company regularly reviews inventory quantities on hand
and writes down to its net realizable value any inventory believed to be impaired. If actual demand or market conditions are less favorable than projected demand,
additional inventory write-downs may be required that could adversely impact financial results for the period in which the additional excess or obsolete inventory
is identified.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight line method based on estimated useful lives
of two to ten years for machinery and equipment and four to ten years for furniture and fixtures. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line
method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.
Expenditures for renewals or betterments are capitalized.

The Company capitalizes the cost of software used for internal operations once technological feasibility of the software has been demonstrated in accordance with
Statement of Position No. 98-1. Such costs consist primarily of custom-developed and packaged software and the direct labor costs of internally developed
software. All capitalized software costs are depreciated on a straight-line basis over a period of three to seven years

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets (primarily property, equipment and intangible assets) are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its
fair value. Fair value is determined primarily using the estimated future cash flows associated with the asset under review, discounted at a rate commensurate with
the risk involved and other valuation techniques.

Intellectual Property

The Company capitalizes intellectual property costs relating to patenting its technology as they are incurred, excluding costs associated with Company personnel.
Capitalized costs, the majority of which represent legal costs, reflect the cost of both awarded patents and patents pending. The Company amortizes the cost of
these patents over the estimated useful life of the patents, generally up to seven years. If the Company elects to stop pursuing a particular patent application,
determines that a patent application is not likely to be awarded for a particular patent, or elects to discontinue payment of required maintenance fees for a
particular patent, the Company at that time records as expense the net capitalized amount of such patent application or patent

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, the Company assesses the realizability of goodwill annually, at
October 31st, as well as whenever events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. These events or circumstances
generally include operating losses or a significant decline in earnings associated with the acquired business or asset. The Company�s ability to realize the value of
the goodwill will depend on the future cash flows of the business. If the Company is not able to realize the value of goodwill, the Company may be required to
incur material charges relating to the impairment of those assets. The Company completed its annual review of goodwill as of October 31, 2006 and has
determined that no write-down for impairment is necessary.
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ABIOMED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Acquisition-related intangible assets include the costs of acquired product technology, patents, trademarks and other specifically identifiable intangible assets.
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of seven years.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires disclosure for estimates of the fair value of financial instruments. The Company�s
financial instruments were comprised of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, accounts receivable and accounts payable, the carrying amounts of
which approximated fair market value.

Revenue Recognition and Product Warranty

The Company recognizes revenue when evidence of an arrangement exists, title has passed (generally upon shipment) or services have been rendered, the selling
price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured in accordance with the SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (�SAB 104�). The Company
also follows the guidance of EITF No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables when transactions include multiple elements. Revenue from
product sales to new customers is deferred until training on the use of the products has occurred. All costs related to product shipment are recognized at time of
shipment. The Company does not provide for rights of return to customers on product sales.

Maintenance and service support contract revenues are recognized ratably over the term of the service contracts based upon the elapsed term of the service
contract. In limited instances, the Company also rents its console medical devices on a month-to-month basis or for a longer specified period of time to customers
for which revenue is recognized as earned.

Government-sponsored research and development contracts and grants generally provide for payment on a cost-plus-fixed-fee basis. Revenues from these
contracts and grants are recognized as work is performed, provided the government has appropriated sufficient funds for the work. Under contracts in which the
Company elects to spend significantly more on the development project during the term of the contract than the total contract amount, the Company prospectively
recognizes revenue on such contracts ratably over the term of the contract as it incurs related research and development costs, provided the government has
appropriated sufficient funds for the work.

Consoles sold are covered by a one-year warranty for which estimated contractual warranty obligations are recorded in cost of revenue at the time of shipment.
The Company�s products are subject to rigorous regulation and quality standards

Translation of Foreign Currencies

All assets and liabilities of the Company�s non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated at year-end exchange rates, and revenues and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the year in accordance with SFAS No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation. Resulting translation adjustments are reflected in the accumulated
other comprehensive (loss) income component of stockholders� equity. Currency transaction gains and losses are included in the accompanying statement of
operations and are not material for the three years presented.

Net Loss Per Share

In accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share, basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the fiscal year. Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of dilutive common shares
outstanding during the fiscal year. Dilutive shares outstanding are calculated by adding to the weighted shares outstanding any potential (unissued) shares of
common stock and warrants based on the treasury stock method. In fiscal years when net income is reported, the calculation of diluted net income per share
typically results in lower earnings per share than is calculated using the basic method. In fiscal years when a net loss is reported, such as the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, all common stock equivalents are excluded from the calculation because they would have an anti-dilutive effect, meaning the loss
per share would be reduced. Therefore, in fiscal years when a loss is reported the calculation of basic and dilutive loss per share results in the same value.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The calculation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding for the fiscal years ended, March 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 excludes warrants to purchase up to
400,000 shares of common stock issued in connection with the purchase of intellectual property (Note 12). Also excluded from the calculation of diluted weighted
average shares outstanding for the fiscal years ended, March 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 are stock options outstanding in the amount of 3,617,506, 3,961,643, and
4,305,920, respectively and unvested shares of restricted stock in the amount of 24,000 shares, 16,000 shares and 8,000 shares, respectively.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is comprised of net loss and other comprehensive (loss) income. Other comprehensive (loss) income includes certain changes in equity that
are excluded from net loss, such as translation adjustments.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Share-based Payment. SFAS No. 123(R) requires entities to recognize compensation costs for all
share-based payments, including grants of employee stock options, based on the grant-date fair value of those share-based payments (with limited exceptions),
adjusted for expected forfeitures.

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective application transition method. Under this
transition method, the compensation cost recognized beginning April 1, 2006 includes compensation cost for (i) all share-based payments granted prior to, but not
yet vested as of April 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, and (ii) shares issued in
offerings under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan with offering periods commencing April 1, 2006 and stock options granted subsequent to March 31, 2006
based on the grant-date fair value estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). Compensation cost is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for share-based payments issued subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). For stock
options issued prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the accelerated method is used for expense recognition.

Prior to April 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of APB No. 25. The Company elected to follow
the disclosure-only alternative requirements of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Accordingly, the Company did not recognize the
compensation expense for the issuance of options with fixed exercise prices at least equal to the fair market value at the date of the grant. Under the modified
prospective transition method of SFAS No. 123(R), results for prior periods are not restated; however, the presentation of pro forma net income (loss) and net
income (loss) per share as if the Company had accounted for its stock plans under the fair value method of SFAS No. 123 is required for periods presented prior to
the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FIN No. 48

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) released FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes � an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48). FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for how a company should recognize, measure, present, and
disclose in its financial statements uncertain tax positions that the Company has taken or expects to take on a tax return. Under FIN 48, the financial statements
will reflect expected future tax consequences of such positions presuming the taxing authorities� full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts, but without
discounting for the time value of money. FIN 48 also revises disclosure requirements and introduces a prescriptive, annual, tabular roll-forward of the
unrecognized tax benefits. FIN 48 will become effective with the Company�s fiscal year beginning April 1, 2007. The Company is evaluating the effect that the
adoption of FIN 48 may have on its consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

SFAS No. 157

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. Among other requirements, SFAS No. 157 defines fair value and establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and also expands disclosure requirements regarding fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those years. The Company is evaluating the impact that the
adoption of SFAS No. 157 may have on its consolidated financial statements.

SFAS No. 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which provides companies with an
option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value in an attempt to reduce both complexity in accounting for financial instruments and the
volatility in earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently. This Statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity�s first fiscal year
beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 159 may have on its consolidated financial statements.

Note 3. Restricted Cash

The Company had restricted cash of approximately $0.3 million included in prepaid expenses and other current assets at March 31, 2006 and March 31, 2007. This
cash represents security deposits held in the Company�s European banks for certain facility and auto leases.

Note 4. Marketable Securities

The amortized cost, including interest receivable approximates market value of held�to-maturity short-term marketable securities and was $16.9 million and $5.5
million at March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

The Company has classified its portion of the investment portfolio consisting of corporate asset-backed securities as available-for-sale securities for fiscal 2006.
The cost of these securities approximates market value and was $6.1 million at March 31, 2006. Principal payments of these available-for-sale securities are
typically made on an expected pre-determined basis rather than on the longer contractual maturity date. There were no available-for-sale securities at March 31,
2007.

Note 5. Accounts Receivable

The components of accounts receivable are as follows:

March 31,
2006 2007

Trade receivables $   9,091 $ 11,135
Allowance for doubtful accounts (211) (203)

$   8,880 $ 10,932
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Note 6. Inventories

The components of inventories are as follows:

March 31,
2006 2007

Raw materials and supplies $   1,764 $   3,755
Work-in-process 659 1,771
Finished goods 2,445 3,041

$ 4,868 $ 8,567

All of the Company�s inventories relate to circulatory care product lines that include the AB5000, BVS 5000, AbioCor and Impella products. Finished goods and
work-in-process inventories consist of direct material, labor and overhead. From time to time, the Company loans finished goods inventory on a short-term basis to
customers for demonstration purposes or clinical trial purposes which are amortized over a three-year life. The cost of �demo� inventory and the net carrying value
are reflected in the table below:

March 31,
2006 2007

Cost of inventory used for demo purposes $   1,066 $   2,082
Accumulated amortization (498) (904)

$ 568 $ 1,178

Note 7. Property and equipment

The components of property and equipment are as follows:

March 31,
2006 2007

Machinery and equipment $ 12,519 $ 15,513
Furniture and fixtures 1,340 1,367
Leasehold improvements 2,545 2,522
Construction in progress 989 654

Total cost 17,393 20,056
Less accumulated depreciation (12,569) (14,292)

$ 4,824 $ 5,764

Depreciation expense related to property and equipment was $1.1 million, $1.4 million and $1.9 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively.

Note. 8 Acquisition
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In May 2005, the Company acquired all of the shares of outstanding capital stock of Impella CardioSystems AG (�Impella�) in exchange for approximately $1.6
million in cash and 4,029,004 shares of Abiomed common stock. As of March 31, 2007, 11,019 of the shares have been returned to the Company as a result of
Abiomed�s settlement of undisclosed pre-acquisition liabilities. Impella develops, manufactures and markets percutaneous micro heart pumps with integrated
motors and sensors for use in interventional cardiology and heart surgery. These devices are designed primarily for use by interventional cardiologists to support
pre-shock patients in the cath lab who may not require as much support as patients in the surgery suite. The Impella catheters are designed to provide ventricular
support for patients requiring hemodynamic stabilization or suffering from reduced cardiac output, and can aid in recovering the hearts of patients following a
heart attack. The Impella 2.5 and 5.0 catheters and Impella RD and LD heart pumps are already available in Europe under CE mark approval. In the U.S., both the
Impella 2.5 and 5.0 are in pilot clinical trials.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Note. 8 Acquisition (Continued)

The aggregate purchase price, excluding a contingent payment in the amount of $5.6 million made on January 30, 2007 in the form of common stock, was
approximately $45.1 million, which consisted of $42.2 million of the Company�s common stock, $1.6 million of cash paid to certain former shareholders of
Impella, and $1.3 million of transaction costs, consisting primarily of fees paid for financial advisory and legal services. The Company issued 4,029,004 shares of
common stock, the fair value of which was based upon a five-day average of the closing price two days before and two days after the terms of the acquisition were
agreed to and publicly announced.

In addition, the purchase agreement for the acquisition of Impella provides that the Company may be required to make additional contingent payments to Impella�s
former shareholders of up to $16.75 million. If the average market price per share of Abiomed�s common stock, as determined in accordance with the purchase
agreement, as of the date of any of the milestones is achieved is $22 or more, no additional contingent consideration will be required with respect to the
milestones. If the average market price is between $18 and $22 on the date of the Company�s achievement of a milestone, the relevant milestone payment will be
reduced ratably. The following are the potential milestone payments notwithstanding the foregoing:

� upon FDA approval of Impella�s 2.5 liter pump system, a payment of $5,583,333,

� upon FDA approval of Impella�s 5.0 liter pump system, a payment of $5,583,333, and

� upon the sale of 1,000 units of Impella�s products worldwide between the closing and December 31, 2007, a payment of $5,583,334.
These milestone payments may be made, at the Company�s option, by a combination of cash or stock, except that no more than an aggregate of $15 million of these
milestone payments may be made in the form of stock. If any contingent payments are made, they will result in an increase in the carrying value of goodwill. The
Company reached the 1,000 unit milestone in the third quarter of fiscal 2007. On January 30, 2007, 402,279 shares of common stock were issued to satisfy this
milestone obligation of $5.6 million which was accounted for by increasing both goodwill and stockholder�s equity.

The acquisition of Impella was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and the results of operations of Impella have been included in the
consolidated results of the Company from the acquisition date. The purchase price of the acquisition was allocated to tangible and intangible assets and assumed
liabilities based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The Company allocated approximately $9.5 million of the purchase price to intangible
assets comprised of existing technology, patents, trademarks and other purchased intangibles (Note 9). In addition, approximately $13.3 million of the purchase
price was allocated to in-process research and development. The excess purchase price of approximately $20.3 million after this allocation was accounted for as
goodwill.

The following table presents the fair values of assets and liabilities initially recorded in connection with the Impella acquisition:

Cash $ 535
Accounts receivable 805
Inventories 1,335
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 514
Property and equipment 589
Intangible assets:
Patents (estimated useful life of 7 years) 6,179
Developed technology (estimated useful life of 7 years) 2,175
Distributor agreements (estimated useful life of 7 years) 800
Trademarks and tradenames (estimated useful life of 7 years) 314
Acquired in-process R&D Charge (�IPR&D�) 13,306

Total intangible assets 22,774
Goodwill 20,268
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Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (1,749)

Total consideration paid $ 45,071
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Of the $22.8 million of acquired intangible assets, $13.3 million was allocated to IPR&D and was written off at the date of acquisition as a non-cash acquisition
charge to operations because the IPR&D had no alternative uses and had not reached technological feasibility. This non-cash acquisition charge is reflected in the
accompanying statement of operations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.

The amount of the IPR&D charge was determined by identifying IPR&D activities that have reached the �substance� stage of development and for which no
alternative future use exists. In addition, the fair value of existing technology for U.S. based sales is included in expensed IPR&D due to the additional risks and
expense incurred by the combined entity in obtaining regulatory approval for U.S. based market sales.

Management determined the valuation of the IPR&D using a number of factors. The value was based primarily on the discounted cash flow method. This
valuation included consideration of (i) the stage of completion of each of the projects, (ii) the technological feasibility of each of the projects, (iii) whether the
projects had an alternative future use, (iv) the estimated future residual cash flows that could be generated from the various projects and technologies over their
respective projected economic lives, and (v) whether additional product development costs or regulatory risks would be incurred to bring the technology to
completion.

The primary basis for determining the technological feasibility of these projects was whether the product has obtained approval from the FDA for commercial
sales in the U.S. As of the acquisition date, the IPR&D projects, as well as the existing technologies and products have not completed or obtained sufficient
clinical data to support an application to the FDA seeking commercial approval.

The economic benefit stream or annual cash flow generated for each of the IPR&D projects and existing technology product sales were determined based upon
management�s estimate of future revenue and expected profitability of the various products and technologies involved. These projected cash flows were then
discounted to their present values taking into account management�s estimate of future expenses that would be necessary to bring the projects to completion. The
discount rates include a rate of return, which accounts for the time value of money, as well as risk factors that reflect the economic risk that the cash flows
projected may not be realized. The cash flows were discounted at discount rates ranging from 23% to 25% per annum, depending on the project�s stage of
completion and the type of complex functionality needed. This discounted cash flow methodology for the various projects included in the purchased IPR&D
resulted in a total valuation of $13.3 million. Although work on the projects related to the IPR&D is anticipated to continue after the acquisition, the amount of the
purchase price allocated to IPR&D was written off because the projects underlying the IPR&D that was being developed were considered technologically feasible
as of the acquisition date, however the assets utilized in these projects, excluding the patents, have no alternative future use.

Note 9. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill was recorded in connection with the Company�s acquisition of Impella (Note 8):

Balance at May 10, 2005 (date of acquisition) $   20,129
Purchase price adjustments 131
Exchange rate impact (1,154)

Balance at March 31, 2006 19,106
Purchase price adjustments-milestone payment 5,583
Exchange rate impact 2,019

Balance at March 31, 2007 $ 26,708

The components of intangible assets are as follows:

March 31, 2006 March 31, 2007
Cost Cost
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Accumulated
Amortization

Net Book
Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Book
Value

Patents $ 6,990 $   1,564 $   5,426 $ 7,625 $   2,681 $   4,944
Trademarks and Tradenames 407 109 298 444 175 269
Distribution Agreements 754 99 655 655 179 476
Acquired Technology 2,054 269 1,785 2,258 618 1,640

$ 10,205 $ 2,041 $ 8,164 $ 10,982 $ 3,653 $ 7,329
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Amortization expense for intangible assets was $0.1 million, $1.3 million and $1.6 million for the years ending March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.
Assuming no future acquisitions, the estimated annual amortization expense for fiscal years 2008 through 2009, fiscal years 2010 through 2012, and thereafter is
$1.5 million, $1.4 million, and $0.1 million, respectively.

Note 10. Warranties

The following table summarizes the activities in the warranty reserve for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007:

March 31,
2006 2007

Balance at the beginning of the year $ 231 $ 167
Accrual for warranties issued 193 132
Settlements made (257) (142)

Balance at the end of the year $ 167 $ 157

Note 11. Stock Award Plans and Stock Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Share-based Payment. SFAS No. 123(R) requires entities to recognize compensation costs for all
share-based payments, including grants of employee stock options, based on the grant-date fair value of those share-based payments (with limited exceptions),
adjusted for expected forfeitures.

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective application transition method. Under this
transition method, the compensation cost recognized beginning April 1, 2006 includes compensation cost for (i) all share-based payments granted prior to, but not
yet vested as of April 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, and (ii) shares issued in
offerings under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan with offering periods commencing April 1, 2006 and stock options granted subsequent to March 31, 2006
based on the grant-date fair value estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). Compensation cost is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for share-based payments issued subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). For stock
options issued prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the accelerated method is used for expense recognition.

The Company has elected to calculate the available additional paid-in capital pool for purposes of determining the impact of tax deficiencies using the alternative
transition method described in FSP 123(R)-3, Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards.

Stock Option Plans

With the exception of 3,557 outstanding options that were granted to certain employees during our fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, with an exercise price of
$0.01 per share, all outstanding stock options of the Company as of March 31, 2007 were granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date
of grant. For the options and restricted stock granted below fair market value, compensation expense is recognized ratably over the vesting period. Outstanding
stock options, if not exercised, expire 10 years from the date of grant.

The 1992 Combination Stock Option Plan (the �Combination Plan�), as amended, was adopted in September 1992 as a combination and amendment of the
Company�s then outstanding Incentive Stock Option Plan and Nonqualified Plan. A total of 2,670,859 options were awarded from the Combination Plan during its
ten-year restatement term that ended on May 1, 2002. As of March 31, 2007, 141,300 of these options remain outstanding, fully vested and eligible for future
exercise.

The 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, (the �Equity Incentive Plan�), was adopted by the Company in August 1998. The Equity Incentive Plan provides for grants of
options to key employees, directors, advisors and consultants as either incentive stock options or nonqualified stock options as determined by the Company�s Board
of Directors. A maximum of 1,000,000 shares of common stock may be awarded under this plan. Options granted under the Equity Incentive Plan are exercisable
at such times and subject to such terms as the Board of Directors may specify at the time of each stock option grant. Options outstanding under the Equity
Incentive Plan have vesting periods of 3 to 5 years from the date of grant and options awarded expire ten years from the date of grant.
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The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, (the �2000 Plan�), as amended, was adopted by the Company in August 2000. The 2000 Plan provides for grants of options to key
employees, directors, advisors and consultants to the Company or its subsidiaries as either incentive or nonqualified stock options as determined by the Company�s
Board of Directors. Up to 4,900,000 shares of common stock may be awarded under the 2000 Plan and are exercisable at such times and subject to such terms as
the Board of Directors may specify at the time of each stock option grant. Options outstanding under the 2000 Plan generally vest 4 years from the date of grant
and options awarded expire ten years from the date of grant.

The Company has a nonqualified stock option plan for non-employee directors (the �Directors� Plan�). The Directors� Plan, as amended, was adopted in July 1989 and
provides for grants of options to purchase shares of the Company�s common stock to non-employee Directors of the Company. Up to 400,000 shares of common
stock may be awarded under the Directors� Plan. Options outstanding under the Director�s Plan have vesting periods of 1 to 5 years from the date of grant and
options expire ten years from the date of grant

Grant-Date Fair Value

The Company estimates the fair value of each stock option granted at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option valuation model, consistent with the provisions
of SFAS No. 123(R), SEC SAB No. 107 Share-based Payment and the Company�s prior period pro forma disclosure of net loss, including stock-based
compensation (determined under a fair value method as prescribed by SFAS No. 123). The fair value of options granted during the fiscal years 2005, 2006 and
2007 were calculated using the following weighted average assumptions:

2005 2006 2007
Risk-free interest rate 3.87% 4.14% 4.97%
Expected option life (in years) 7.5 7.3 6.25
Expected Volatility 84% 73% 65%

The risk-free interest rate is based on the United States Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for a term consistent with the expected life of the stock
options. Volatility assumptions are calculated based on a combination of the historical volatility of our stock and adjustments for factors not reflected in historical
volatility that are more indicative of future volatility. By using this combination, the Company is taking into consideration estimates of future volatility that the
Company believes will differ from historical volatility as a result of product diversification and the Company�s acquisition of Impella. The average expected life
was estimated using the simplified method for determining the expected term as prescribed by the SEC�s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107. The calculation of the
fair value of the options is net of estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures are estimated based on an analysis of actual option forfeitures, adjusted to the extent historic
forfeitures may not be indicative of forfeitures in the future. In addition, an expected dividend yield of zero is used in the option valuation model, because the
Company does not pay cash dividends and does not expect to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

The weighted average grant-date fair value for options granted during fiscal years 2005, 2006, and 2007 was $8.05, $6.91, and $8.75 per share, respectively.

The application of SFAS No. 123(R) resulted in expense of $5.8 million, or $0.21 per share for the 2007 fiscal year which is recorded within the applicable
operating expense where the Company reports the option holders� compensation cost in the consolidated statements of operations. The remaining unrecognized
stock-based compensation expense for unvested stock option awards at March 31, 2007 was approximately $9.0 million, net of forfeitures, and the weighted
average time over which this cost will be recognized is 1.9 years. SFAS No. 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized
compensation cost to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow. Because the Company does not recognize the benefit of tax
deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost due to its net operating loss position, this change had no impact on the Company�s consolidated statement of
cash flows for the twelve months ended March 31, 2007.

Accounting Prior to Adoption of SFAS No. 123 (R)

Prior to April 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of APB No. 25. The Company elected to follow
the disclosure-only alternative requirements of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Accordingly, the Company did not recognize the
compensation expense for the issuance of options with fixed exercise prices at least equal to
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the fair market value at the date of the grant. Under the modified prospective transition method of SFAS No. 123(R), results for prior periods are not restated;
however, the presentation of pro forma net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share as if the Company had accounted for its stock plans under the fair value
method of SFAS No. 123 is required for periods presented prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

In the process of adopting SFAS No. 123(R), the Company determined that the historical estimated forfeiture rates used in the SFAS No. 123 pro forma disclosure
in the previously issued financial statements were higher than the Company�s actual historical forfeiture rates, resulting in an understatement of the Company�s pro
forma stock compensation expense. The Company has revised its pro forma disclosure for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006 to reflect estimated forfeiture
rates that are consistent with the Company�s historical forfeiture rates. This revision resulted in an increase in pro forma expense and pro forma net loss in the
amount of $2.3 million and $1.8 million and an increase in net loss per share of $0.11 and $0.07 for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, and 2006, respectively,
which is reflected in the table below.

2005 2006
Net loss, as reported $   (2,342) $ (29,449)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation included in reported net loss 98         340
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based method for all awards (5,145) (6,307)

Pro forma net loss $ (7,389) $(35,416)

Basic and diluted loss per share
As reported $ (0.11) $ (1.15)
Pro forma $ (0.34) $ (1.38)
Stock Option Activity

The following table summarized stock option activity for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006:

2005 2006

Options

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price Options

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 3,076,839 $ 9.05 3,617,506 $ 10.11
Granted 1,487,400 10.34 1,108,882 9.42
Exercised (665,437) 5.90 (317,985) 6.33
Cancelled (244,821) 8.16 (292,687) 8.15
Expired (36,475) 19.48 (154,073) 16.69

Outstanding at end of year 3,617,506 $ 10.11 3,961,643 $ 10.11

Exercisable at end of year 1,423,805 $ 10.99 1,637,702 $ 11.10

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the year ended March 31, 2007:

Options

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

Weighted Average
Remaining Contractual

Term (Years)
Aggregate Intrinsic

Value
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Outstanding at March 31, 2006 3,961,643 $ 10.11
Granted 1,102,850 13.57
Exercised (350,933) 7.84
Cancelled (347,949) 10.85
Expired (59,691) 15.95

Outstanding at March 31, 2007 4,305,920 $ 11.04 7.03 $ 13,648,205

Exercisable at March 31, 2007 1,997,012 $ 10.72 5.42 $ 8,151,352
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The total intrinsic value of options exercised (i.e. the difference between the market price at exercise and the price paid by the employee to exercise the options)
for the fiscal years 2005, 2006, and 2007 was $5.1 million, $1.2 million, and $2.0 million, respectively. The total fair value of options vested in fiscal years 2005,
2006, and 2007 was $2.0 million, $5.1 million, and $5.3 million, respectively.

Variable Options

The Company has a consulting agreement with David M. Lederman, Ph.D., its former Chief Executive Officer and former Chairman of its Board of
Directors. Under this consulting agreement, Dr. Lederman has agreed to serve as a senior advisor for four years in exchange for $0.2 million of annual
compensation, starting on April 2, 2005. Dr. Lederman�s existing non-qualified stock options that were awarded in the past during his tenure as the Company�s CEO
remain unmodified and will continue to vest during the term of his service as a non-employee advisor. He has the ability to exercise the options during this
term. These options are considered variable options, the fair value of which will be expensed over the vesting period of the options, subject to adjustment based on
the market price of the Company�s common stock at the close of each financial reporting period

Restricted Stock

On March 1, 2005, the Company granted 24,000 shares of restricted stock to an officer of the Company, of which 16,000 shares vested in 8,000 increments on
March 1, 2006 and March 1, 2007. The remaining 8,000 shares will vest on March 1, 2008. The fair value of this grant per share, $10.80, was calculated based
upon the fair market value of the Company�s stock price at the date of grant. The restricted stock grant compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis
over a vesting period of three years. At March 31, 2007, there was $0.1 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to these restricted shares.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In March of 1988, the Company adopted the 1988 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ( �the Purchase Plan� or �ESPP�), as amended. Under the Purchase Plan, eligible
employees (including officers and directors) who have completed three months of employment with the Company or its subsidiaries who elect to participate in the
Purchase Plan instruct the Company to withhold a specified amount from each payroll period during a six-month payment period (the periods April 1 �
September 30 and October 1 � March 31). On the last business day of each payment period, the amount withheld is used to purchase common stock at an exercise
price equal to 85% of the lower of its market price on the first business day or the last business day of the payment period. Up to 500,000 shares of common stock
may be issued under the Purchase Plan, of which 232,998 shares are available for future issuance as of March 31, 2007. During the fiscal years ended March 31,
2005, 2006 and 2007, 21,287, 23,970, and 27,095 shares of common stock, respectively, were sold pursuant to the Purchase Plan. Compensation expense
recognized related to the Company�s ESPP was $0.1 million for fiscal 2007. Compensation expense for the Company�s ESPP was valued using the Black-Scholes
option valuation model using the following assumptions: an expected life of six months, a weighted average volatility of 39.75% and a weighted average risk free
rate of 4.84%.

Note 12. Capital Stock

Each share of common stock has a voting right of one vote per share.

The Company has authorized 1,000,000 shares of Class B Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, of which the Board of Directors can set the designation, rights and
privileges. No shares of Class B Preferred Stock have been issued or are outstanding.

In August 1997, the Company declared a dividend of one Preferred Share Purchase Right (the Right) for each outstanding share of common stock to its
stockholders of record at August 28, 1997. Each right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company one one-thousandth of a share of Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock with a par value of $0.01 per share, at a price of $45.00 per one one-thousandth of a share, subject to amendment. In
accordance with the terms set forth in the Rights Agreement, the Rights are not exercisable until the occurrence of certain events, as defined. In addition, the
registered holders of the Rights will have no rights as a common stockholder of the Company until the Rights are exercised. The Company�s Board of Directors
may amend the terms of the Rights. The Rights expire on August 13, 2007.
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In September 2000, the Company issued common stock and warrants to acquire the exclusive rights to the Penn State Heart together with complete ownership of a
company incorporated to commercialize the Penn State Heart called BeneCor Heart Systems, Inc. The terms of this transaction consisted of payment of 110,000
shares of the Company�s common stock, plus the issuance of warrants to purchase up to 400,000 additional shares of the Company�s common stock at an exercise
price of $0.01 per share. Exercise of the warrants is contingent on the achievement of certain clinical and regulatory milestones with the Penn State Heart by
specified dates, the last of which is September 30, 2007. Warrants not vested and exercised by September 30, 2007 will expire. The value of the common stock
and warrants issued in connection with the transaction are included in stockholders� equity in the amount of $3.1 million each for a total of $6.2 million, which
represents the fair value of the stock and warrants based on the closing market price for the Company�s stock on the closing date for this transaction. These
amounts were fully expensed as in-process research and development on the date of acquisition because the technology had no future alternate use. As of
March 31, 2007, approximately 400,000 warrants were outstanding and none were exercisable.

See Note 8 to these consolidated financial statements for the effect on the Company�s capital structure from the May 10, 2005 acquisition of Impella
CardioSystems AG.

In March 2007, the Company issued 5,000,000 shares of common stock in a public offering for use in expanding the Company�s global sales and distribution,
completion of clinical studies and regulatory processes, investments in research and development to broaden the Company�s portfolio of products across the
continuum of care and for general corporate processes. In April of 2007, an additional 80,068 shares of common stock were issued in connection with the offering
upon the partial exercise of the underwriters� over-allotment option.

Note 13. Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to tax benefit carryforwards and to differences between the
financial statement amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates. A
valuation reserve is established if it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The tax benefit associated with the
stock option compensation deductions will be credited to equity when realized.

At March 31, 2007, the Company had federal and state net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards of approximately $79.2 million and $36.9 million, respectively,
which begin to expire in fiscal 2008. At March 31, 2007, the Company also had foreign NOL carryforwards of approximately $20.6 million that can be carried
forward indefinitely. Additionally, at March 31, 2007, the Company had federal and state research and experimentation credit carryforwards of approximately $6.3
million and $4.3 million, respectively, which begin to expire in fiscal 2008. Ownership changes, as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, may have
limited the amount of net operating loss carryforwards and research and experimentation credit carryforwards that the Company can use each year to offset future
taxable income and taxes payable. Subsequent ownership changes could impose additional limitations. The Company has not done a complete analysis to
determine whether changes in the composition of its stockholders, including the Company�s acquisition of Impella or the Company�s recent public offering, have
resulted or will result in an ownership change for purposes of Section 382.

Loss before income taxes is as follows for the years ended March 31:

2005 2006 2007
Loss before income taxes:
United States $   (1,761) $ (10,599) $ (15,660)
Foreign (581) (18,494) (11,746)

Income (loss) before income taxes $ (2,342) $ (29,093) $ (27,406)

Provision for income taxes:
Current:
Federal $ 46 $ �  
State �  �  
Foreign �  �  
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Total current 46 �  

Deferred:
Federal 264 404
State 46 71
Foreign �  �  

Total deferred 310 475

Total tax provision $ 356 $ 475
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There was no current or deferred tax provision for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005. Differences between the federal statutory income tax rate and the
effective tax rates for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007, are summarized as follows:

2006 2007
Statutory income tax rate 34.0% 34.0%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit �  �  
Change in valuation allowance (42.0) (42.5)
Credits 2.5 2.7
Rate differential on foreign operations 4.7 2.3
Stock based compensation �  2.2
Alternative minimum tax (0.2) �  
Other, net (0.2) (0.4)

Effective tax rate (1.2)% (1.7)%

For fiscal year 2005 the effective tax rate of zero differs from the statutory rate of 34% primarily due to the inability of the Company to recognize deferred tax
assets as a result of its net operating loss position.

The components of the Company�s net deferred taxes were as follows at March 31:

2006 2007
Assets
NOL carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards $ 32,700 $ 38,366
Foreign NOL carryforwards 7,119 8,237
Stock based compensation �  2,303
Nondeductible reserves and accruals 1,070 338
Deferred revenue 132 263
Depreciation 505 489
Amortizable intangibles other than goodwill 5,284 5,180
Other, net 1,079 959
Capitalized research and development 23,721 26,801

71,610 82,936

Liabilities
Identified intangibles (3,108) (2,805)
Indefinite lived intangible (310) (784)
Cumulative foreign currency translation gain �  (407)

(3,418) (3,996)

Net deferred tax asset 68,192 78,940
Valuation allowance (68,502) (80,131)

Net deferred taxes $ (310) $ (1,191)
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The change in the valuation allowance of $11.6 million is primarily due to the impact of the current year operating losses without current tax benefit.

Management has determined that the Company is not likely to realize the income tax benefit of its net deferred tax assets. To the extent the Company generates
income in future years, the tax provision will reflect the realization of such benefits, with the exception of benefits attributable to acquired deferred tax assets. The
recognition of such amount in future years will be allocated to reduce the excess of the purchase price over the net assets acquired and other non-current intangible
assets.
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As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and the fiscal year 2006 acquisition of Impella, the Company has recorded a
valuation allowance in excess of its net deferred tax assets to the extent the difference between the book and tax basis of indefinite lived intangible assets is not
expected to reverse during the net operating loss carryforward period.

The net deferred tax liability of $1.2 million at March 31, 2007 is primarily due to the difference in accounting for the Company�s goodwill, which is amortizable
over 15 years for tax purposes but not amortized for book purposes, in accordance with SFAS No. 142. It is also due to an unrealized gain from fluctuations in
foreign currency with respect to our European operations which are treated as disregarded entities for tax purposes. These net deferred tax liabilities cannot be
offset against the Company�s deferred tax assets under U.S. generally accepted accounting principals since they relate to indefinite-lived assets and are not
anticipated to reverse in the same period.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (�FIN 48�).
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements. The Interpretation requires that the Company
determines whether it is more likely that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority. If a tax position meets the more
likely than not recognition criteria, FIN 48 requires the tax position be measured at the largest amount of benefit greater than 50% likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. FIN 48 must be applied to all existing tax positions upon initial adoption. This accounting standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt FIN 48 on April 1, 2007. The Company is evaluating the impact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company�s acquisition of Impella provides that Abiomed may be required to make additional contingent payments to Impella�s former shareholders (see Note
8). The Company may make additional contingent payments to Impella�s former shareholders based on additional milestones related to FDA approvals in the
amount of up to $11.2 million. These contingent payments may be made in a combination of cash or stock under circumstances described in the purchase
agreement.

On May 15, 2006, Richard A. Nazarian, as Selling Stockholder Representative, filed a Demand for Arbitration (subsequently amended) with the Boston office of
the American Arbitration Association. The claim seeks 600,000 unrestricted shares of Abiomed common stock for an alleged breach of our obligation to fund
development of the Penn State Heart program and an alleged cancellation of the Penn State Heart development project. The Company instituted a legal action in
Federal Court to determine the arbitrability of the claims asserted and the Federal Court has stayed the arbitration of a portion of the claim. The arbitration
hearings have been completed and the Company is awaiting a decision. The Company has applied the concepts of SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, and
has determined that no accrual is warranted.

The Company applies the disclosure provisions of FIN No. 45, Guarantor�s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others, and Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34 (FIN No. 45) to its agreements
that contain guarantee or indemnification clauses. These disclosure provisions expand those required by SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, by requiring
that guarantors disclose certain types of guarantees, even if the likelihood of requiring the guarantor�s performance is remote. The following is a description of
arrangements in which the Company is a guarantor.

Product warranties�The Company routinely accrues for estimated future warranty costs on its product sales at the time of sale. Abiomed�s products are subject to
rigorous regulation and quality standards. Operating results could be adversely effected if the actual cost of product failures exceeds the estimated warranty
provision.

Patent indemnifications�In many sales transactions, the Company indemnifies customers against possible claims of patent infringement caused by the Company�s
products. The indemnifications contained within sales contracts usually do not include limits on the claims. The Company has never incurred any material costs to
defend lawsuits or settle patent infringement claims related to sales transactions. Under the provisions of FIN No. 45, intellectual property indemnifications require
disclosure only.

The Company enters into agreements with other companies in the ordinary course of business, typically with underwriters, contractors, clinical sites and customers
that include indemnification provisions. Under these provisions the Company generally indemnifies and holds harmless the indemnified party for losses suffered
or incurred by the indemnified party as a result of its activities. These indemnification
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Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

provisions generally survive termination of the underlying agreement. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make
under these indemnification provisions is unlimited. Abiomed has never incurred any material costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these
indemnification agreements. As a result, the estimated fair value of these agreements is minimal. Accordingly, the Company has no liabilities recorded for these
agreements as of March 31, 2007.

Clinical study agreements � In the Company�s clinical study agreements, Abiomed has agreed to indemnify the participating institutions against losses incurred by
them for claims related to any personal injury of subjects taking part in the study to the extent they relate to uses of the Company�s devices in accordance with the
clinical study agreement, the protocol for the device and Abiomed�s instructions. The indemnification provisions contained within the Company�s clinical study
agreements do not generally include limits on the claims. The Company has never incurred any material costs related to the indemnification provisions contained
in its clinical study agreements

As of March 31, 2007, the Company had entered into leases for its facilities, including its primary operating facility in Danvers, Massachusetts, with terms through
fiscal 2010. The Danvers lease may be extended, at the Company�s option, for two successive additional periods of five years each with monthly rent charges to be
determined based on then current fair rental values. The Company�s lease for its Aachen location expires in December 2012. In December 2005 we closed our
office facility in The Netherlands, recording a charge of approximately $0.1 million for the remaining lease term. Total rent expense under these leases, included
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations approximated $0.8 million, $1.3 million, and $1.6 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under all significant non-cancelable operating leases as of March 31, 2007 are approximately as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending March 31,
Operating

Leases
2008 1,960
2009 1,850
2010 1,590
2011 831
2012 822
Thereafter 616

Total future minimum lease payments $  7,669

From time-to-time, the Company is involved in legal and administrative proceedings and claims of various types. While any litigation contains an element of
uncertainty, management presently believes that the outcome of each such other proceedings or claims which are pending or known to be threatened, or all of them
combined, is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company�s financial position, cash flow and results.

Note 15. Research and Development

Research and development is a significant portion of the Company�s operations. The Company�s research and development efforts are focused on the development
of new products related to cardiac assist, recovery and heart replacement and to continually enhance and improve our existing products. Research and development
costs are expensed when incurred and include direct materials and labor, depreciation, contracted services and other costs associated with developing new products
and significant enhancements to existing products. Research and development expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are reflected in
the table below:

2005 2006 2007
Internally funded $   13,100 $   16,480 $   22,123
Incurred under government contracts and grants 250 259 169
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Note 16. Expensed In-Process Research and Development

The Company recorded a charge of $0.8 million during the quarter ended June 30, 2006 in connection with the acquisition of certain circulatory care device
patents and know-how. This charge relates to costs to acquire in-process research and development projects and technologies, which have not reached
technological feasibility at the date of the asset acquisition and have no alternative future use.

The Company recorded a $13.3 million non-cash charge to in-process research and development expense during the quarter ended June 30, 2005 in connection
with the Company�s acquisition of Impella on May 10, 2005. This charge relates to costs to acquire in-process research and development projects and technologies,
which have not reached technological feasibility at the date of the business acquisition and have no alternative future use.

Note 17. 401(k) Plan

The Company has a 401(k) Plan that covers all employees who are at least 20 years of age. Amounts paid by the Company to match a portion of employees�
contributions and discretionary amounts determined by the Company�s Board of Directors totaled approximately $0.2 million for each of the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Note 18. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

March 31,
2006 2007

Salaries and benefits $   3,432 $   4,214
Warranty 167 157
Professional, accounting and auditing fees 1,224 1,611
Other 362 1,035

$ 5,185 $ 7,017

Note 19. Segment and Enterprise Wide Disclosures

The Company operates in one business segment� the research, development and sale of medical devices to assist or replace the pumping function of the failing
heart. The Company�s chief operating decision maker (determined to be the Chief Executive Officer) does not manage any part of the Company separately, and the
allocation of resources and assessment of performance are based on the Company�s consolidated operating results. Approximately 71% of the Company�s total
consolidated assets are located within the United States as of March 31, 2007. Remaining assets are located in Europe, primarily related to our Impella production
facility, and include goodwill and intangibles of $33.7 million at March 31, 2007 associated with the Impella acquisition from May 2005 as discussed in Note 8.
Total assets in Europe excluding goodwill and intangibles were $5.8 million at March 31, 2007 and amounted to 4% of total consolidated assets. International
sales (sales outside the United States and primarily in Europe) accounted for 8%,13% and 11% of total product revenue during the fiscal years ended March 31,
2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.
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Note 20. Quarterly Results of Operation (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of our unaudited quarterly results of operations for the fiscal years ending March 31, 2006 and 2007.

1st

Quarter
2nd

Quarter
3rd

Quarter
4th

Quarter
Total
Year

Fiscal Year 2006
Total revenues $ 8,423 $   10,936 $   10,515 $   13,796 $ 43,670
Cost of product revenue excluding amortization of intangibles 2,333 2,448 3,070 3,834 11,685
Total expenses (1) 24,824 11,527 11,985 13,940 62,276
Other income, net 226 260 313 399 1,198

Loss before provision for income taxes (18,508) (2,779) (4,227) (3,579) (29,093)
Provision for income taxes �  �  253 103 356

Net loss $ (18,508) $ (2,779) $ (4,480) $ (3,682) $ (29,449)

Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.77) $ (0.11) $ (0.17) $ (0.14) $ (1.15)

Fiscal Year 2007
Total revenues $ 13,008 $ 10,886 $ 12,904 $ 13,851 $ 50,649
Cost of product revenues excluding amortization of intangibles 3,483 2,925 2,873 2,731 12,012
Total expenses (1) 15,977 16,835 16,915 17,421 67,148
Other income, net 459 301 262 83 1,105

Loss before provision for income taxes (5,993) (8,573) (6,622) (6,218) (27,406)
Provision for income taxes 138 103 103 131 475

Net loss $ (6,131) $ (8,676) $ (6,725) $ (6,349) $ (27,881)

Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.23) $ (0.33) $ (0.25) $ (0.22) $ (1.03)

(1) Total expenses in the first quarter above include an in-process research and development charge of $13.3 million and $0.8 million for fiscal 2006 and fiscal
2007, respectively.
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SCHEDULE II

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(in thousands)

Description

Balance at
Beginning of

Year Additions Deductions
Balance at

End of Year
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 $   131 $ 1 $ 68 $ 64
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 $ 64 $   186 $ 39 $   211
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 $ 211 $ 106 $   114 $ 203
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